


Dear Fellow Shareholders Associates and Partners

Since our inception over 80 years ago Ballantyne Strong has been trusted name in the cinema world In 2012 we leveraged our decades of expertise

to help lead the industry through its transition and transformation from analog equipment to state-of-the-art digital technology The cinema experience

has now become more immersive and multi-dimensional as higher definition and 3D digital projectors specially engineered silver screens and complex

surround sound systems have helped bring movies to life for audiences with an explosive new spectrum of color and sound

Simply Put New Technology Excites Us

As weve always done we continue to innovate with new products and expanded service lines to meet the demands of the rapidly evolving cinema

industry For example this past year we were excited by the challenge of creating specialty screen for the world premiere of Peter Jacksons The

Hobbit the first film ever to be both produced and projected in 3D at speed of 48 frames per second double the conventional rate of 24

And we couldnt have been more pleased to see another one of our specialty screens the Guinness Book of World Records-setting largest screen on

earth installed at the Panasonic IMAX Theatre in Sydney Australia Our Company thrives on delivering outstanding results in technically challenging

environments and were honored when our business partners trust us to consistently provide them with creative solutions

As we highlighted last year in 2012 we focused on growing the capabilities of our Network Operations Center NOC and we are pleased to have made

significant progress on that front Staffed by software and systems engineers our NOC is outfitted with state of the art technology that allows our staff

to monitor diagnose and repair system issues remotely before our clients know they exist Our technologically advanced NOC is more than customer

service provider it is cutting-edge IT solutions center

When the Show Must Go On It Will With Ballantyne Strong by Your Side

We know our clients need reliable technology to operate their theaters and keep films streaming revenue flowing and customers satisfied To that end

our NOC is staffed 24/7 by engineers and service professionals monitoring our clients networked systems so that when system error is detected

message is automatically generated and sent to our NOC enabling technicians to fix system bugs before they darken theatre screen

In 2012 our NOC team was able to handle nearly third of all service calls remotely This resulted in little or no service wait times and seamless

business operations for our clients ensuring that revenue streams werent interrupted because of down equipment As always our on-the-ground

Strong Technical Services technicians certified in all of the latest digital theatre technologies including the most advanced surround and 3D sound

systems were dispatched to handle the more complex issues We believe the combination of our remote NOC talented technical staff and the

Companys national footprint provides our clients with the most technologically advanced solutions Our NOC also allows us to proactively monitor

wide range of systems remotely from digital projectors to library management systems as well as leading sound systems and concessions signage

We even have the capacity to track networked lighting systems from afar

The Future Is Bright

Historically our lighting division has been focused on theatrical lighting particularly the manufacturing and installation of follow-spots and other entertain

ment and event venue-related lighting That is our heritage and we believe it will continue to be core element of our lighting business going forward

We maintain our commitment to excellence in theatrical lighting and are honored that in 2012 our lighting systems were chosen to re-light the Strato

sphere Club in Las Vegas and to accompany George Strait on his headline-making farewell tour We spent the past year restructuring our lighting

division and strengthening our ties with key suppliers to include LDR and DTS We believe this work provides strong foundation for growth in 2013

The profile of our commissioned
lighting

work is undeniably world class We believe that our noteworthy installations the iconic beam of
light shining

up from the Luxor pyramid in Las Vegas the architectural and theatrical lighting
at the Nokia Theatre and Staples Center in Los Angeles the lighting we

designed for NASAS Space Shuttle the architectural accent lighting at the six-star Burj al Arab Hotel in Dubai will continue to attract additional premier

signature lighting opportunities in 2013 and beyond

Of course we are particularly proud of the work we have done with the Freedom Tower at the new World Trade Center in New York City As we get

ready to watch the customized beacon and façade lighting we designed for the Freedom Tower which is positioned atop the building our design

capability feels electric and full of potential to us

Were Cinema. .and So Much More

Our increased capital from digital cinema conversions has allowed us to position our Company for the next opportunity for growth through strategic

acquisitions and growth across investments in new markets Further weve leveraged our increased profits in recent years by investing in staff that are

capable of driving new technologies forward We are also exploring new lines of business that will help position us for future growth

In 2012 our focus was on maximizing our resources to generate greater return on every dollar we spent We sold our Omaha-based manufacturing

plant and moved our corporate headquarters to west Omaha The new facility was designed to provide state-of-the-art service and support to our

customers It also hosts corporate training and development product center that showcases our world-class products and houses our NOC

We will continue to provide unparalleled turnkey service in new digital
cinema installations conversions and system upgrades But as the cinema

experience becomes more integrated and technologically advanced we know that our job is no longer about selling
and

installing product Its about

being there 24/7 to make sure that each product includes the latest software and is maintained in optimal condition to ensure the longest and most

effective lifespan Our clients have come to see us as dynamic partner in their business and believe our NOC will meet their managed service needs

with excellence

As digital audio-visual and dramatic lighting systems become more commonplace in every facet of commercial life from restaurants to airports to places

of worship and education we see our opportunities for future growth expanding far beyond the world of cinema Weve already entered into some of

those markets and are eager to realize all the potential they hold

Over 80 Years and Still Going Strong Ballantyne Strong

Throughout our long history weve successfully evolved with the theatre industry and have grown through acquisitions and new business lines to ensure

our long-term stability Today we continue to honor our long tradition of innovation expertise and adaption and remain optimistic in our prospects for

continued growth and endurance

Regar 4t /9
Gary Cavey

President and Chief Executive Officer
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains not only historical information but also forward-looking statements

within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 Statements that are not historical are forward-looking and reflect expectations for future Company performance In

addition forward-looking statements may be made in press releases orally at conferences on the Companys

worldwide web site or otherwise by or on behalf of the Company For these statements the Company claims the

protection
of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of

1995

Forward-looking statements involve number of risks and uncertainties including but not limited to those

discussed in the Risk Factors section contained in Item 1A Given the risks and uncertainties readers should not place

undue reliance on any forward-looking statements and should recognize that the statements are predictions of future

results which may not occur as anticipated Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-

looking statements and from historical results due to the risks and uncertainties described herein as well as others not

now anticipated
New risk factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for management to predict

all such risk

factors nor can it assess the impact of all such factors on our business or the extent to which any factor or combination

of factors may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements Except

as required by law the Company assumes no obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect actual results or

changes in factors or assumptions affecting such forward-looking statements

PART

Item Business

General Description of Business

General

We are Delaware corporation and maintain our corporate offices in Omaha Nebraska We were founded in

1932 as designer and manufacturer of film projectors Over the past 80 years we have expanded our product lines and

services to meet the needs of the ever-changing and technologically-advancing
theatre exhibition industry Further we

have broadened our offerings through acquisitions to include lighting
division that services architectural

entertainment and other commercial needs We went public in 1995 and now primarily operate within two business

segments theatre and lighting Approximately 98% 98% and 97% of our sales were from theatre products for the years

ended 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Our shares are traded on the NYSE MKT under the symbol BTN

Our centralized Network Operations
Center NOC located in our Omaha Nebraska headquarters is staffed

with software and network engineers
who provide

technical support service and IT solutions for our theatre division It

allows our customers to consider new theatre technologies as they become more advanced and integrated keeping

complex systems and processes
within their reach Our NOC remotely monitors tracks programs upgrades and fixes

full range of systems for all makes of digital projection audio systems menu display boards and the associated network

systems It is complemented by responsive team of on-the-ground
service technicians spread across North America and

Asia who install and service digital and audio equipment and products

We are manufacturer distributor integrator
and service provider to the exhibition theatre industry on

worldwide basis Through our Strong branding we can fully outfit and automate all aspects of cinematic theatre

including digital projection cinema screens library management systems smart digital signage flat panels and complete

state of the art sound systems including Dolby Surround Barco Auro 11.1 and QSC Sound Systems We manufacture

cinema screens in Joliette Canada through our StrongfMDI Screens Systems Inc subsidiary We have sales and

services offices across North America and Asia

Through our lighting division we design develop manufacture distribute install and service lighting systems

for premier
architectural sites as well as for full range

of needs for the entertainment and various other industries

worldwide This includes followspots and other specialty lighting for event centers arenas exhibit halls concert tours

staged theatrical performances and music dance and various other venues with theatric lighting needs



In the fourth quarter of 2011 our Board of Directors and management approved corporate-wide strategic
initiative to refocus our worldwide digital equipment distribution business services platform and cinema screen
manufacturing business and exit the analog projector manufacturing business The strategic initiative consisted of selling
our Omaha Nebraska-based analog projector facility and manufacturing equipment and relocating our corporate
headquarters to new smaller location in Omaha which also houses our Network Operations Center In connection with
the strategic initiative we recorded pre-tax severance charges of

approximately $1.4 million including $1.3 million in

2011 and $0.1 million in 2012 Severance of $0.3 million was paid in 2011 and $1.0 million was paid in 2012 The
remaining $0.1 million will result in future cash expenditures in 2013 In March 2012 we sold the analog projector
manufacturing machinery and equipment previously identified as available for sale for $1.0 million resulting in gain of
$0.9 million In May 2012 we completed the sale of the corporate headquarters in sale leaseback transaction
resulting in gain of $0.5 million As part of this transaction rental expense of $0.2 million was recorded throughNovember 2012 The net cash proceeds from the transaction were $2.0 million The strategic initiative is expected to be
completed by the end of the second quarter of 2013

Operating Segments

We conduct our operations through two primary business segments Theatre and Lighting The presentation of
segment information reflects the manner in which management assesses performance

Theatre This segment consists of the service manufacture assembly distribution and installation of digital

projection equipment screens and accessories
primarily for the theatre exhibition industry

Lighting This segment consists of the design manufacture assembly distribution installation and service of

lighting systems to worldwide industries for architectural entertainment and other commercial lighting needs

Refer to the Business Segment Infonnation set forth in Note 20 of our consolidated financial statements for

further information
concerning the amounts of revenues profits and total assets attributable to each segment for the last

three fiscal
years

Narrative Description of Business

The following information describes the principal products produced services rendered principal markets for
and methods of distribution of each business segment of our Company

Theatre Segment

Overview

The Company provides full range of services and theatre exhibition systems primarily for the theatre
exhibition industry The systems include wide spectrum of premier audio-visual products and accessories such as
digital projectors state of the art projection screens servers and library management systems digital signage and menu
boards flat panels and sound systems Services provided include the monitoring upgrade and repair and maintenance
of

existing systems the installation of new theatre exhibition systems and related equipment and complete film-to-

digital theatre conversion services retrofitting existing complexes by removing film projectors and replacing them with
digital equipment The monitoring upgrade maintenance and repair of networked systems are performed by our
Network Operations Center NOC using as much as possible remote smart technology to identify and troubleshoot
software and other system issues Hardware upgrades installations maintenance and repair services are performed
onsite by on-the-ground technicians

Products

Network Operations Center NOCIn the era of analog film cinema exhibitors were able to manage and
service their installed projectors and related equipment themselves But in the digital age audio to visual

technology
relies on advanced integrated networks that require theatre exhibitors to manage their complex digital systems Our
NOC staffed by software engineers and systems techs operates 24/7/3 65 and provides IT solutions to our customers for
their full

range of digital theatre exhibition equipment to help manage these systems We are able to monitor our
customers networked equipment remotely through secure virtual private network VPN often providing proactive
solutions to systems issues before they cause system failures Our remote services include systems monitoring and



maintenance software upgrades and system repairs By utilizing NOC personnel to solve customer issues whenever

possible we eliminate travel time and expenses normally incurred by sending technician onsite for repairs Many

issues that dont involve parts replacements or physical contact with the hardware can be handled remotely using our

remote assistance technologies

Service MaintenanceWe supply digital installations and after-sale maintenance services Our technicians

work closely with our NOC staff to resolve systems
issues that cannot be fixed remotely they are certified to install and

service digital and audio equipment for all manufacturers including the equipment of our competitors We offer cabling

wiring and installation and maintenance services for digital menu boards and other digital signage on ad hoc as-needed

basis We also offer long term contractual service packages for maintenance and repairs to wide range of installed

digital equipment for customers including equipment originally installed by our competitors These long term service

packages provide our Company with recurring revenue

Digital ProjectorsThrough distribution agreements
with NEC and BARCO we distribute DLP Cinema

projectors
Both manufacturers of the projectors use the DLP cinema technology from Texas Instruments NEC offers

DLP Cinema projectors ranging from their NC900 projector
for screens up to 31 feet wide to the NC3240S which is

4K projector designed for screens up to 105 feet wide BARCO offers DLP Cinema projectors ranging from their DP2K-

OSX projector
for screens up to 33 feet to the DP4K-32B cinema projector which is an ultra-bright enhanced 4K cinema

projector
for screens up to 105 feet

Our non-exclusive distribution agreements
with NEC and BARCO allow us to market digital projectors in

North and South America including the Caribbean In China we have distribution rights to sell NEC and BARCO and

can distribute NEC products in Hong Kong and certain other areas of Asia We do not have any territorial restrictions for

any of our other products and services

Cinema ServersThrough formal distribution agreement with GDC Technology USA LLC we distribute

GDCs line of digital cinema servers in North and South America We also distribute their servers in certain other areas

of the world under less formal arrangements In addition we distribute servers for other server manufacturers including

those manufactured by Doremi Digital servers and the related integrated media block are used by our customers for the

storage and delivery of digital content

Additional Digital Projection ProductsWe also distribute certain accessories which coupled with the cinema

projector server and integrated media block can fully outfit and automate projection booth The significant accessories

include but are not limited to library management systems automation products pedestals 3D accessories

lenses and lamps

Digital Audio SystemsWe distribute range of state of the art digital audio systems including surround and

3D sound technologies from the following manufacturers Dolby Barco and QSC Our technicians are certified by each

manufacturer to install service and maintain these audio systems

Cinema ScreensWe manufacture multiple standard and large format 2D and 3D screens for cinema and

special venue applications through our ISO-certified manufacturing facility in Canada There are certain digital 3D

applications
such as the technology by RealD that require unique silver screens that we manufacture We

manufacture screens for the IMAX Corporation that are primarily
used in large-format applications on global basis

Digital Menu Boards and SignageWe provide installation maintenance and service of digital menu boards

and other digital signage primarily for the theatre industry

Xenon LampsWe distribute xenon lamps for resale to the theatre both digital and film and lighting

industries through distributorship agreement with Philips We also distribute other brands of xenon lamps as requested

by our customers

LensesWe distribute digital projection lenses throughout the world



Markets

We market and sell our products directly to end users as well as through certain domestic and international

dealers primarily to theatre exhibitors in the cinema world Sales and marketing professionals target new business

opportunities and principally develop business by maintaining regular personal customer contact including conducting
site visits while customer service and technical support functions are dispatched when needed In addition we market
our products in trade publications such as Film Journal and Box Office and by participating in annual industry trade
shows such as CinemaCon ShowEast CineAsia in Asia and Cinema Expo in Europe and other regional exhibitions
Our sales and marketing professionals have extensive experience with the Companys product lines and have long-term
relationships throughout the industry

Our non-exclusive distribution agreements with NEC and BARCO allow us to market digital projectors in

North and South America including the Caribbean In China we have distribution rights to sell NEC and BARCO and
can distribute NEC products in Hong Kong and certain other areas of Asia We do not have any territorial restrictions for

any of our other products and services

Competition

Digital EquipmentThe markets for our products in the theatre segment have been highly competitive during
the analog-to-digital cinema conversion The primary competitive factors are price product quality features and
customer support Competition in the digital cinema equipment market includes one other licensed OEM of the Texas
Instruments DLP cinema

technology besides our partners NEC and BARCO Christie Digital Systems We also

compete with SONY which uses its own 4K digital cinema technology

ScreensWhile there are numerous screen manufacturing companies in the world the primary competitor in

the worldwide cinema screen market is Harkness Screens Competitive factors include product quality availability and
price

Service NOCThe competition in the cinema service
industry for installation and after-sale maintenance

services is primarily driven by the two largest cinema service companies including Christie Digital Cinema and
ourselves There are several other smaller scale providers in the market We compete with Christie Digital Systems
BARCO and Convergent and other providers for NOC services

Lighting Segment

Overview

Under the trademark Strong we are developer manufacturer and supplier of long-range followspots as well
as other lighting products for architectural theatrical promotional stage and studio purposes Our products include an
ever-expanding line of LED lighting which are more effective efficient and environmentally sound We provide
installation and maintenance services for our lighting product lines for both permanent and touring applications Our
lighting is installed to accentuate premier architectural sites in sporting arenas and facilities theatres auditoriums
theme parks amphitheaters stadiums music venues and is used in

touring applications for the entertainment and other
industries While the majority our lighting products are mass-produced and fitted to our clients project and property
needs we do perform commissioned work for one-of-a-kind lighting needs For these projects we can provide project
management services including design engineering manufacture installation and continued service Our most notable

lighting commission to date is the beacon light atop of Freedom Tower at the new World Trade Center which will be
placed in 2013

Products

FollowspotsWe have been developer manufacturer and distributor of long-range followspots since 1950
Our

followspots are primarily marketed under the Strong trademark and include recognized trademarked models such
as Super Trouper and Gladiator Our long-range followspots are high-intensity general-use illumination products
designed for both permanent and touring installations Lower wattage models are appropriate for small venues and truss

mounting high-intensity xenon models are appropriate for large theatres arenas and stadiums



In response to segment of the marketplace demanding less expensive smaller and more user and

environmentally friendly products we have introduced certain new followspots over the last few years including the

Canto SolutionsTM and NeevaTM product lines Canto the Italian-manufactured followspot line consists of seven basic

models Our LED lighting fixtures introduced during 2010 include both SolutionsTM and NeevaTM These lights are

designed to fill demand for efficient long-throw LED-based lighting solutions for the entertainment and architectural

lighting marketplaces

Signature
Commissioned LightingOur Company can provide signature one-of-a-kind lighting solutions on

commissioned case-by-case basis for architectural sites entertainment and various other purposes We work with

internal engineers to design develop and identify an appropriate manufacturer for the fixtures and can provide project

management services to clients from inception to installation We can also work as member of larger project

management team for highly complex jobs Jobs of note to date include the beacon light atop Freedom Tower at the new

World Trade Center NASA Space Shuttle lighting and the beacon light atop the iconic pyramid-shaped Luxor Hotel

and Casino in Las Vegas Nevada

Markets

We sell our lighting products through combination of small direct sales force dealer network and

commissioned sales representatives to arenas stadiums theme parks theatres auditoriums equipment rental companies

entertainers and managers and owners of premier
architectural sites worldwide Our followspot products are marketed

using the Strong trademark and are used in over 100 major arenas throughout the world

Competition

The markets for our lighting products are also highly competitive We compete in the lighting industry

primarily on the basis of quality price branding and product line variety

Strategy

Our strategy combines the following key elements

Expand Service and Network Operations Center within our current market and to other strategic growth

markets We have made significant investments in capital and technical resources over the past several years in

strengthening our core service capabilities which include monitoring installation and repair of equipment cabling and

wiring These strengths along with our strong customer relationships will allow us to expand our core service offerings

not only in the theater industry but in to other markets as well In addition the technical capabilities within our NOC

allow us to meet industry demands for remote systems monitoring for digital equipment and back room operations in

other markets outside cinema

Expand Product Sales Opportunities We will continue to bundle and aggressively cross sell all product and

service offerings to existing market channels tapping into our solid customer relationships in the cinema and lighting

segments In addition we are looking for new product offerings either through distribution channels or via in-house

development that fit well with our current product portfolio
and our current markets as well as adjacent markets such as

security and energy management which lend themselves well to our technical capabilities and expertise

We will aggressively market our ability to provide industry leading products and services that provide

significant
value add to our existing customer base as well as those outside our current niche This strategy will be

deployed globally through our existing teams in North America and Asia as well as utilizing partnerships as needed

Leverage Engineering and Project Management Expertise We will deliver user-friendly solutions to

complex projects and products This strategy utilizes the growing strength of our technical expertise to deliver results on

time and on budget for our customers as was evident in the digital deployment for exhibitors such as Regal and Marcus

as well as in the lighting arena for the Signature
Commissioned lighting project for the Freedom Tower As firmware

and software increase in complexity we see opportunity to simplify the existing and emerging technologies for our

customers from deployment through daily operational management and servicing



Pursue Strategic Acquisitions We are focused on identifing and completing acquisitions within areas where

we can effectively leverage our strong competences as an organization including customer service global sales

operations management distribution and channel management and proven skill in integrating installing and supporting
advanced electronic components and software applications

Subsidiaries

We have four wholly-owned operational subsidiaries Strong Technical Services Inc Strong/MD Screen

Systems Inc Strong Westrex Inc and Strong Westrex Beijing Trading Inc

Strong Technical Services Inc was formed in 2006 to service the film and digital marketplace

Strong/MDI Screen Systems Inc manufactures cinema screens and related accessories

Strong Westrex Inc is the holding company for our sales and service office in Hong Kong

Strong Westrex Beijing Trading Inc a/k/a American West Beijing Trading Company Ltd is located in

Beijing China and is our sales and service business for China

Manufacturing

We manufacture cinema screens through our screen subsidiary in Joliette Quebec Canada These

manufacturing operations consist of 75000 square-foot facility for the manufacture of cinema screen systems These
facilities include expanded PVC welding operations with programmable automations as well as two 90-foot high screen

coating towers with state of the art precision coating application software and painting systems This world class ISO
certified operation has the capability of manufacturing multiple standard screens simultaneously to large format 2D and
3D screens for cinema and special venue applications We are one of the only screen manufacturers in the world with

Silver Screen technologies capable of supporting RealD projections

We manufacture the following lighting products at our manufacturing facility in Omaha Nebraska Strong
Radiance Sky-Tracker Super Trouper Gladiator and SolutionsTM

Quality Control

We believe that our quality control procedures and the quality standards for the products we manufacture
distribute or service have contributed significantly to our reputation for high performance and reliability The inspection
of incoming materials and components as well as the testing of all of our products during various stages of the sales and
service cycle are key elements of this program

Trademarks

We own or otherwise have rights to various trademarks and trade names used in conjunction with the sale of
our products We believe our success will not be dependent upon trademark protection but rather upon our scientific and

engineering capabilities and research and production techniques We consider the following trademarks to be of value to

our business Strong Radiance Sky-Tracker Super Trouper Gladiator and SolutionsTM

Employees

We employed 211 persons on full-time basis at December 31 2012 Of these employees 56 were considered

manufacturing were executive 85 were service related and 65 were considered sales and administrative We are not

party to any collective bargaining agreement

Executive Officers of the Company

Gary Cavey age 63 has been our President CEO and member of the Board of Directors since November of
2010



Christopher Stark age 52 assumed the responsibilities of VP-Operations in May of 2007 and is currently

Senior Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer

Ray Boegner age 63 has been Senior Vice President since 1997 Mr Boegner joined us in 1985 and has

acted in various sales roles for our Company

Mary Carstens age 56 serves as Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer Ms Carstens

assumed the role of Chief Financial Officer in July of 2011

David Anderson age 58 serves as Vice President General Counsel and Secretary Mr Anderson assumed

the roles in November of 2012

Information available on Ballantyne Website

We make available free of charge on our website www.strong-world.com through link to the Securities and

Exchange Commission SEC website our annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 0-Q current

reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the

Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 as amended as soon as reasonably practical after we electronically file such

material with or furnish it to the SEC However information posted on our website is not part
of the Form 10-K The

Board of Directors has adopted the following governance documents which are also posted on our website

Code of Ethics

Corporate Governance Principles including procedures for bringing concerns or complaints to the attention

of the Board any Committee or any individual Director

Audit Committee Charter

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter

Compensation Committee Charter

These corporate governance documents are also available in print to any stockholder upon request by writing

to

Corporate Secretary

Ballantyne Strong Inc

13710 FNB Parkway Suite 400

Omaha NE 68154



Financial Information About Geographic Areas

The information called for by this item is included in Note 20 of our consolidated financial statements in this

report

Item JA Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risk factors and other information contained in this Annual Report

on Form 10-K before investing in shares of our common stock Investing in our common stock involves high degree of

risk If any of the following risk factors actually occurs our business financial condition and results of operations could

be materially and adversely affected In that event the trading price of our common stock could decline and you may
lose part or all of your investment We undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements

contained herein to reflect subsequent events or circumstances or the occurrence of unanticipated events Also refer to

the note regarding Forward-Looking Statements in Item of Part II of this Form 10-K

New and expanded lines of business is part of our strategy to compensate for the lower demand for our digital

products and installation services

significant portion of our revenue in recent years has been generated from the theatre exhibition industrys

need for equipment and service to support the industries transformation from film to digital equipment This required the

Company to commit substantial resources to the process of retrofitting existing theatre complexes by removing the film

equipment and replacing it with digital equipment and have thusly experienced significant financial gains from this

work As the theatre exhibition industry nears the completion of this digital conversion
process in 2013 we will no

longer be able to rely on that income as major portion of our earnings If we are unable to expand our revenue streams

with other products and services our future growth would be significantly curtailed

Growth through acquisition is part of our business plan and we may not be able to successfully identify finance or

integrate acquisitions

Our strategy is to pursue acquisitions that would fit in our business plans However we cannot assure that we
will be able to locate appropriate acquisition candidates that any identified candidates will be acquired or that acquired

operations will be effectively integrated or prove profitable or that sufficient financing can be obtained

Our financial results depend largely on the health of the theatre exhibition industry

In 2012 approximately 98% of our revenues resulted from sales to the theatre exhibition industry The current

transformation from analog to digital requires significant investment and there can be no assurance that our customers

will be able to obtain sufficient amount of this capital to continue the transformation Without access to this capital our

theatre customers would be unable to purchase our products which would have material adverse effect on our business

financial condition and results of operations In addition while the health of the theatre exhibition industry has improved

significantly over the past few years there are still risks in the industry which result in continued exposure to Ballantyne

Interruptions of or higher prices of components from our suppliers may affrct our results of operations andfinancial

performance

Our revenues are substantially dependent on the distribution of products supplied by various key suppliers We
believe we have good supplier relationships and that we are generally able to obtain adequate pricing and other terms

from our suppliers However if we fail to maintain satisfactory relationships with them or if our suppliers experience

significant financial problems we could experience difficulty in obtaining needed goods and services Some suppliers

could also decide to reduce inventories or raise prices to increase cash flow The loss of any one or more of our suppliers

could have an adverse effect on our business unless alternative manufacturing arrangements are secured

The markets for our products are highly competitive

The domestic and international markets for our product lines are highly competitive evolving and subject to

rapid technological and other changes We expect the intensity of competition in each of these areas to continue in the

future Certain of the competitors for our digital equipment have significantly greater resources than we do In addition

many of our competitors are manufacturing their own digital equipment whereas we employ distribution business



model through our distribution agreements
with NEC BARCO and certain other suppliers As result we may suffer

from pricing pressures
that could adversely affect our ability to generate revenues If we lose market share due to these

issues we may be unable to lower our cost structure quickly enough to offset the lost revenue If we are unable to

compete successfully our business and results of operations will be seriously harmed

Our business is subject to the economic and political risks of selling products in foreign countries

Sales outside the United States mainly theatre sales continue to be significant accounting for approximately

19% of consolidated sales in fiscal 2012 which include $15.7 million of sales in China This compared to 22% in 2011

and $26.0 million of sales in China We are seeking to expand our share of foreign sales which we expect will continue

to account for significant portion of our revenues Foreign sales are subject to political and economic risks including

political instability currency controls fluctuating exchange rates with respect to sales not denominated in U.S dollars

changes in importlexport regulations tariffs and freight rates significant amount of our foreign sales are denominated

in foreign currencies and amounted to $23.3 million in 2012 To the extent that orders are denominated in foreign

currencies our reported sales and earnings are more subject to foreign exchange fluctuations In addition there can be no

assurance that our remaining international customers will continue to accept orders denominated in U.S dollars For

those sales which are denominated in U.S dollars weakening in the value of foreign currencies relative to the U.S

dollar could have material adverse impact on us by increasing the effective price of our products in international

markets Certain areas of the world are also more cost conscious than the U.S market and there are instances where our

products are priced higher than local manufacturers We are also exposed to foreign currency fluctuations between the

Canadian and U.S dollar due to our screen manufacturing facility in Canada where majority of their sales are

denominated in the U.S dollar while their expenses are denominated in Canadian currency We cannot assure that these

factors will not adversely affect our foreign activities in the future

The risk of non-compliance with U.S and foreign laws and regulations applicable to our international operations

could have significant impact on our results of operationsfinancial
condition or strategic objectives

Our global operations subject us to regulation by U.S federal and state laws and multiple foreign laws

regulations and policies which could result in conflicting legal requirements
These laws and regulations are complex

change frequently have tended to become more stringent over time and increase our cost of doing business These laws

and regulations include import and export control environmental health and safety regulations data privacy

requirements international labor laws and work councils and anti-corruption and bribery laws such as the U.S Foreign

Corrupt Practices Act the U.N Convention Against Bribery and local laws prohibiting corrupt payments to government

officials We are subject to the risk that we our employees our affiliated entities contractors agents or their respective

officers directors employees and agents may take action determined to be in violation of any of these laws particularly

as we expand our operations through organic growth and acquisitions An actual or alleged violation could result in

substantial fines sanctions civil or criminal penalties and debarment from government contracts curtailment of

operations in certain jurisdictions competitive or reputational harm litigation or regulatory action and other

consequences
that might adversely affect our results of operations

financial condition or strategic objectives

Current negative economic conditions could adversely affrct our results

The current issues in the global credit markets and weak worldwide economies may continue to negatively

impact the theatre and lighting markets we serve This environment could serve to reduce demand for our products and

adversely affect our operating results These economic conditions may also impact the financial condition of one or more

of our key suppliers including NEC and BARCO which could affect our ability to secure product to meet our

customers demand The Company could also be adversely affected by such factors as changes in foreign currency rates

and weak economic and political conditions in each of the countries in which the Company sells its products

We are substantially dependent upon significant customers who could cease purchasing our products at any time

The Companys top ten customers accounted for approximately 47% of 2012 consolidated net revenues and

were from the theatre segment Trade accounts receivable from these customers represented approximately 36% of net

consolidated receivables at December 31 2012 Sales to CDF2 Holdings represented approximately 12% of total 2012

sales and account receivable from CDF2 represented 5% of net consolidated receivables The note receivable from

CDF2 had an outstanding balance of $2.2 million at December 31 2012 Additionally receivables from Belmont

Capital Group represented approximately 17% of net consolidated receivables at December 31 2012 While the

Company believes its relationships with such customers are stable most arrangements are made by purchase order and



are terminable at will by either party significant decrease or interruption in business from the Companys significant

customers could have material adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition and results of operations

Security and privacy breaches could harm our business ifwe are affected by cyber-attack

cyber-attack that bypasses our information technology IT security systems causing an IT security breach

may lead to material disruption of our IT business systems and/or the loss of business information resulting in adverse

business impact The risks may include such items as

Future results could be adversely affected due to the theft destruction loss misappropriation or release of

confidential data or intellectual property

Operational or business delays resulting from the disruption of IT systems and subsequent clean-up and

mitigation activities

Negative publicity resulting in reputation or brand damage with our customers partners or industry peers

The Company has recorded defrrred tax assets that are subject to annual valuation testing

At December 31 2012 we have recorded net deferred tax assets of $3.1 million In assessing the ability to

realize the deferred tax assets management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the

deferred tax assets will not be realized If it would be determined that some or all of these assets would not be realized
valuation reserves would be required which would have material adverse effect on our results of operations

If we fail to retain key members of management our business may be materially harmed

Our success depends in substantial part on the efforts and abilities of our current management team Many of

these individuals have acquired specialized knowledge and skills with respect to Ballantyne and its operations If certain

of these individuals were to leave unexpectedly we could face
difficulty in hiring qualified successors and could

experience loss in productivity while any successor obtains the
necessary training and experience

Our stock price is vulnerable to sign ificant fluctuations

The trading price of our conmon stock has been highly volatile in the past and could be subject to significant

fluctuations in
response to variations in quarterly operating results general conditions in the industries in which we

operate and other factors In addition the stock market is subject to price and volume fluctuations affecting the market

price for the stock of many companies generally which fluctuations often are unrelated to operating performance

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

The Company has no unresolved staff comments to report pursuant to this item

Item Properties

Our headquarters and NOC are located at 13710 FNB Parkway Omaha Nebraska where we lease office space
The premises are used for offices and operating the NOC The lease expires in April 2023 Our

primary distribution

facility is located at 4350 McKinley Street Omaha Nebraska where we lease on month-by-month basis

approximately 20000 square feet of our previously owned facility The premises are used for distribution and
manufacture of certain products In addition our subsidiaries owned or leased the following facilities as of

December 31 2012

Our Strong/MD Screen Systems Inc subsidiary owns 75000 square-foot manufacturing plant in

Joliette Quebec Canada The facilities are used for offices manufacturing assembly and distribution of

the cinema screens We believe this facility is well maintained and adequate for future needs

Our Strong Westrex Beijing Trading Inc subsidiary leases office
space in Beijing and certain other cities

in China The leases expire between August and December 2013
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We also lease office space in Hong Kong The lease expires
November 2014

Strong Technical Services Inc leases small administrative office on month-by-month basis in Fall

River Massachusetts

We do not anticipate any difficulty in retaining occupancy of any leased facilities either by renewing leases

prior to expiration or replacing them with equivalent leased facilities

Item Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of our business operations we are involved from time to time in certain legal disputes

No such disputes individually or in the aggregate are expected to have material effect on our business or financial

condition

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

PART II

Item Market for Registrants
Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities

Our common stock is listed and traded on the NYSE MKT under the symbol BTN The following table sets

forth the high and low per share sale price for the common stock as reported by the NYSE MKT

High Low

2012 First Quarter
5.37 4.06

Second Quarter
6.48 5.26

Third Quarter
6.02 4.03

Fourth Quarter
4.54 3.09

2011 First Quarter
8.01 6.18

Second Quarter
7.28 4.69

Third Quarter
4.77 3.08

Fourth Quarter
4.23 2.76

2010 First Quarter
5.89 3.10

Second Quarter
9.00 5.45

Third Quarter
9.66 6.91

Fourth Quarter
9.74 6.48

According to the records of our transfer agent we had 135 stockholders of record of our common stock on

March 2013 Because brokers and other institutions hold many of our shares on behalf of stockholders we are unable

to estimate the total number of stockholders represented by these record holders The last reported per
share sale price

for the common stock on March 2013 was $3.73 We had 14050797 shares of common stock outstanding on

March 42013

On December 22 2011 we announced that our Board of Directors adopted stock repurchase program

authorizing the repurchase of up to $8 million of our outstanding Common Stock pursuant to plan adopted under

Rule lobs-i of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended On August 2012 the Company discontinued the

Plan prior to repurchasing the full amount of common stock originally authorized No repurchases were made during the

fourth quarter of 2012 as reflected in the following table
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ISSUER REPURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIESl

Approximate

Dollar Value

Total of Shares

Number of that May
Shares Yet Be

Purchased Purchased

as Part of Under the

Total Average Publicly Plans

Number Price Announced or Programs
of Shares Paid per Plans or in

Period Purchased Share Programs thousands
October October 31 2012 0.00

November November 30 2012 0.00

December December 31 2012 0.00

Information for Stock Repurchase Program announced December 22 2011 in maximum amount of $8 million

Dividend Policy

We intend to retain our earnings to assist in financing our business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends

on our common stock in the foreseeable future The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company are also

subject to the discretion of the Board Any determination by the Board as to the payment of dividends in the future will

depend upon among other things business conditions our fmancial condition and capital requirements as well as any
other factors deemed relevant by the Board We have not paid cash dividends since we went public in 1995

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information regarding our Stock Option Restricted Stock and Stock Purchase

Plan Agreements as of December 31 2012

Number of

securities

remaining

available

Number of Weighted for future

securities to average issuance

be exercise under equity

issued upon price of compensation

exercise of outstanding plans

outstanding options excluding

options warrants securities

warrants and reflected in

Plan Category and rights rights2 column

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 139000 4.70 6765391
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders

Total
139000 4.70 6765391

Includes 65753 securities for the 2005 Stock Purchase Plan 190186 securities for our employee and director
Restricted Stock Plans and 405000 securities for our 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares Ballantyne Strongs cumulative total stockholder return over the last five fiscal

years with the Standard and Poors 500 Index SP 500 the Research Data Group Inc RDG SmaliCap

Technology Index and peer group consisting of the following issuers Avid Technology Inc Chyron Corp Eastman

Kodak Company Ikonics Corp Swordfish Financial Inc RealD Inc and XRX International Entertainment

Holding Group The Company has in good faith selected these peer issuers on the basis of their sharing the same SIC

code 3861 Photographic Equipment Supplies The peer group total return was calculated using weighted average

market value The graph assumes $100 was invested on December 31 2007 and assumes reinvestment of all dividends
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COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Ballantyne Strong Inc the SP 500 Index the RDG SmaIlCap Technology Index

and SIC 3861 PHOTOGRAPHIC EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES

--0--- RDG SmailCap Technology

SIC 3861 PHOTOGRAPHIC EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES

$100 invested on 12/31/07 in stock or index induding reinvestment of dividends

Fiscal year ending December 31

Copyrlght 2013 SP division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc All rights reserved

12/07 12/08 12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12

$0

12/07 12108 12/09 12/10 12/11 12/12

Ballantyne Strong Inc

fr SP 500

Ballantyne Strong Inc 100.00 21.03 63.76 132.82 69.91 56.41

SP 500 100.00 63.00 79.67 91.67 93.61 108.59

RDG SmaliCap Technology 100.00 53.51 74.86 94.66 74.41 71.91

SIC 3861 PHOTOGRAPHIC

EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES 100.00 32.34 24.78 32.89 9.07 9.02
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Item Selected Financial Data

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

in thousands except per share data
Statement of operations data

Net revenue 169084 184433 136335 72146 54815
Gross profit 22594 30213 24739 14732 8794
Net earnings loss 5542 10347 8434 2071 3034
Net earnings loss per share

Basic 0.39 0.72 0.60 0.15 0.22
Diluted 0.39 0.71 0.59 0.15 0.22

Balance sheet data

Working capital 56897 50504 40400 35805 21810
Total assets 99546 113456 92031 60210 51113
Total debt

Stockholders equity 66916 63223 52376 42518 38835

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements

and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this report Managements discussion and analysis contains not only historical

information but also forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Statements that are not historical are forward-looking and reflect

expectations for future Company performance For these statements the Company claims the protection of the safe

harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

Forward-looking statements involve number of risks and uncertainties including but not limited to those

discussed in the Risk Factors section contained in Item Given the risks and uncertainties readers should not place
undue reliance on any forward-looking statement and should recognize that the statements are predictions of future

results which may not occur as anticipated Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-

looking statements and from historical results due to the risks and uncertainties described herein as well as others not

now anticipated New risk factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for management to predict all such risk

factors nor can it assess the impact of all such factors on our business or the extent to which any factor or combination

of factors may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements Except
as required by law the Company assumes no obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect actual results or

changes in factors or assumptions affecting such forward-looking statements

Overview

We are manufacturer distributor integrator and service provider to the exhibition theatre industry on
worldwide basis Through our Strong branding we can fully outfit and automate all aspects of cinematic theatre

including digital projection cinema screens library management systems smart digital signage flat panels and complete
state of the art sound systems We manufacture cinema screens in Joliette Quebec Canada through our Strong/MD
Screens Systems Inc subsidiary

Through our lighting division we design develop manufacture distribute install and service lighting systems
for premier architectural sites as well as for full

range of needs for the entertainment and various other industries

worldwide This includes followspots and other specialty lighting for event centers arenas exhibit halls places of

worship concert tours staged theatrical performances and music dance and various other venues with theatric lighting

needs

We have two primary reportable operating segments theatre and lighting Our segments were determined based
on the manner in which management organizes segments for making operating decisions and assessing
performance Approximately 98% of fiscal

year 2012 revenues were from theatre products and services and

approximately 2% were lighting products Additional information related to our reporting segments can be found in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the percentage of net revenues represented by certain

items reflected in our consolidated statements of operations

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Net revenue
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Cost of revenues
86.6 83.6 81.9 79.6 84.0

Gross profit

13.4 16.4 18.1 20.4 16.0

Selling and administrative expensesl2 9.4 7.5 9.5 15.3 19.7

Income loss from operations
4.7 8.2 8.8 5.1 7.4

Net earnings loss 3.3 5.6 6.2 2.9 5.5

Amounts exclude goodwill impairment charges of $2.3 million for the year ended December 31 2008

Amounts for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 exclude severance charges of $0.1 million and $1.3

million respectively

Corporate-wide restructuring

In the fourth quarter
of 2011 our Board of Directors and management approved corporate-wide strategic

initiative to refocus our worldwide digital equipment distribution business services platform
and cinema screen

manufacturing business and exit the analog projector manufacturing business The strategic initiative consisted of selling

our Omaha Nebraska-based analog projector facility and manufacturing equipment and relocating our corporate

headquarters to new smaller location in Omaha which also houses our Network Operations Center In connection with

the strategic initiative we recorded pre-tax severance charges of approximately $1.4 million including $1.3 million in

2011 and $0.1 million in 2012 Severance of $0.3 million was paid in 2011 and $1.0 million was paid in 2012 The

remaining $0.1 million will result in future cash expenditures
in 2013 In March 2012 we sold the analog projector

manufacturing machinery and equipment previously identified as available for sale for $1.0 million resulting in gain of

$0.9 million In May 2012 we completed the sale of the corporate headquarters in sale leaseback transaction

resulting in gain of $0.5 million As part of this transaction rental expense of $0.2 million was recorded through

November 2012 The net cash proceeds
from the transaction were $2.0 million The strategic initiative is expected to be

completed by the end of the second quarter of 2013

2012 Compared to 2011

Revenues

Net revenues during the year ended December 31 2012 decreased 8.3% to $169.1 million from $184.4 million

in the year
ended December 31 2011

2012 2011

in thousands

Theatre

Products
151688 167017

Services
14591 14157

Total theatre revenues
166279 181174

Lighting
2805 3259

Total net revenues
169084 184433
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Theatre Segment

Sales of theatre products and services decreased 8.2% to $166.3 million in 2012 from $181.2 million in 2011

Digital Product Sales

Sales of digital products decreased in 2012 to $135.5 million from $138.8 million in 2011 This is decrease of
2.4% from 2011 Digital projectors and servers accounted for $1.5 million of the decrease in sales from 2011 with
sales of digital lenses and lamps accounting for the remaining decrease single theatre customer accounted for 26% of
digital product sales in 2011 which did not recur in 2012

Screen Product Sales

We generated screen sales of $13.0 million in 2012 decrease of 25.3% from the $17.4 million generated in

2011 The decrease
primarily resulted from customers accelerating their rollout of 3D systems in prior years thereby

decreasing the demand for silver screens in 2012

Film Product Sales

Sales of film projection equipment declined 73.7% to $1.5 million in 2012 from $5.7 million in 2011 Sales of
film replacement parts declined to $1.1 million during 2012 from $3.6 million in 2011 while sales of xenon lamps
amounted to $0.5 million compared to $1.5 million year-ago These declines were expected and sales of these

products are expected to continue to decline as the industry continues to transition to digital cinema

Service Revenues

Service revenues increased 3.1% to $14.6 million from $14.2 million in 2011 as the motion picture industrys
transition to digital cinema resulted in more opportunities for our service team including installation and maintenance of

digital projectors Revenues from servicing digital products rose to $13.9 million or 95% of all service revenues in 2012
from $13.1 million or 92% in 2011 As expected revenues generated from servicing film equipment decreased to $0.7
million in 2012 compared to $1.1 million

year-ago consistent with the industry transition to digital equipment
resulting from increased demand for installation maintenance and other services

pertaining to the digital conversion

Lighting Segment

Sales of lighting products decreased to $2.8 million from $3.2 million during 2011 This decrease is primarily
due to decrease in sales of follow spotlights to $1.7 million from $1.8 million

year-ago and decrease in parts sales

to $0.4 million in 2012 from $0.7 million in 2011 Sales of other lighting products remained
approximately $0.7 million

in 2012 and 2011 Even though demand for lighting for the venue and entertaimiient sectors of the construction business
is still slow we are moving to focus on growing segment architectural accent lighting

Foreign Revenues

Sales outside the United States primarily from the theatre segment decreased to $32.0 million from
$41.1 million in 2011 Although sales in Canada and South America increased sales decreased in the remaining export
markets The largest decreases occurred in China Export declines in China and other foreign markets are reflective of

highly competitive environments combined with sensitivity to the timing of the digital cinema rollout in these countries
as well as diminishing film equipment sales Export sales are also sensitive to worldwide economic and political
conditions that lead to volatility in the market

Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit decreased 25.2% to $22.6 million from $30.2 million in 2011 and as percent of total

revenue decreased to 13.4% from 16.4% in 2011

Gross profit in the theatre segment decreased to $21.9 million from $29.2 million in 2011 and as percentage
of theatre sales decreased to 13.2% from 16.1% year-ago Our gross margin decreased from the prior year due to
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higher concentration of lower margin digital equipment and lamps and lower concentration of screen sales which carry

strong margins as well as pricing
decreases due to competitive

market

Gross profit
in the lighting segment amounted to $0.7 million or 23.3% as percentage

of revenues in 2012

compared to $1.0 million or 30.9% as percentage
of revenues in 2011

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses
increased 13.5% to $4.5 million from $3.9 million in 2011 and as percentage

of revenues

increased to 2.6% from 2.1% year-ago The increase in selling expenses is due to higher wages and commissions

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses
increased 3.2% to $11.5 million in 2012 from $11.1 million in 2011 and

amounted to 6.8% and 6.0% of revenues respectively The increase in expenses
is primarily due to recruiting costs

higher professional fees and consultants used in the Asia operations offset by lower severance charges

Segment Operating Income

We generated operating
income in the theatre segment of $14.7 million in 2012 compared to $22.8 million in

2011 The results reflect decrease of $7.8 million in theatre product operating
income to $12.6 million in 2012 from

$20.4 million in 2011 Operating income of theatre services decreased $0.3 million to $2.1 million in 2012 compared to

$2.4 million year ago

The lighting segment generated an operating loss of $0.2 million in 2012 compared to operating
income of $0.2

million in 2011

Other Financial Items

Our results for 2012 reflect income of $0.01 million pertaining to our 44.4% share of equity in the income from

Digital Link II LLC compared to loss of $0.2 million in 2011 The change in 2012 reflects the improvement in the

LLCs net income and sales of equipment by the LLC to customers for projectors previously
held in the LLC as

compared to 2011

Other income amounted to $0.1 million in 2012 compared to $0.07 million in 2011 The results primarily

reflect the impact of exchange gains and losses due primarily to the U.S dollar fluctuating against the Canadian dollar

from year-to-year

We recorded income tax expense of approximately $2.6 million in 2012 compared to $4.7 million in 2011 The

effective tax rate calculated as ratio of income tax expense to pretax earnings inclusive of equity method investment

income losses was approximately 32.0% for 2012 and 31.3% in 2011 The effective tax rate differs from the statutory

rates primarily as result of differing foreign and U.S tax rates applied to respective pre-tax earnings by tax jurisdiction

The effective tax rate increased in 2012 from 2011 due to lower earnings before tax for the Canada and Asia operations

which have lower tax rates and reduction in the expected credits the Company will earn in 2012 compared to 2011

For the reasons outlined herein we generated net earnings of approximately $5.5 million and basic and diluted

earnings per share of $0.39 compared to $10.3 million and basic and diluted earnings per
share of $0.72 and $0.71 in

2011 respectively
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2011 Compared to 2010

Revenues

Net revenues during the twelve months ended December 31 2011 rose 35.3% to $184.4 million from
$136.3 million in 2010

2011 2010

in thousands
Theatre

Products
167017 125044

Services
14157 7882

Total theatre revenues 181174 132926
Lighting 3259 3409

Total net revenues
184433 136335

Theatre Segment

Sales of theatre products and services increased 36.3% to $181.2 million in 2011 from $132.9 million in 2010

Digital Product Sales

Sales of digital products rose 59.5% to $138.8 million from $87.0 million in 2010 due to the following

significant sale of digital equipment to theatre customer which represented approximately 26% of

digital product revenues during 2011

general increase in sales volume in the U.S as theatre exhibition companies continued to convert their

theatre complexes to digital-based projection equipment

Sales of lamps rose to $15.3 million from $5.8 million in 2010 while sales of servers rose to $14.3 million

from $7.4 million in 2010

We also continued to integrate projection equipment in our Omaha plant for large exhibition customer
Revenues generated from the accessories we sell with the integration services increased to $8.6 million in 2011 from
$5.0 million in 2010 We do expect this integration business to substantially decline after fiscal 2012 due to the
exhibition customers digital conversion being substantially completed

Screen Product Sales

Revenues from the sale of screens decreased 7.9% to $17.4 million in 2011 compared to $18.9 million in 2010

primarily due to lower demand for digital 3D screens Sales were at record levels in 2010 as exhibition companies
pushed to capture the relative new 3D movie Box Office during the 2010 period We sell screens for both digital cinema
and film applications In some instances screen can be used interchangeably with either digital projector or film

projector However there are certain digital 3D applications such as the technology by RealD that require special
silver screens that we manufacture

Film Product Sales

The transition to digital cinema has impacted sales of film equipment accessories and replacement parts and
these products are expected to further decline in future periods As expected sales declined year-over-year as follows

Sales of projection equipment declined to $5.7 million from $10.9 million

Replacement part sales declined to $3.6 million from $4.7 million

Sales of lamps declined to $1.5 million from $3.4 million

18



Service Revenues

Service revenues increased 79.7% to $14.2 million from $7.9 million in 2010 resulting from increased demand

for installation maintenance and other services pertaining to the digital conversion Digital service revenues rose to

$13.1 million from $5.6 million in 2010 as the rollout is creating opportunities for our service group to sell range of

services including but not limited to installations after-sale maintenance repairs cabling wiring and NOC services

The industry transition to digital is affecting revenues from servicing film equipment which declined to

$1.1 million from $2.3 million in 2010

Lighting Segment

Sales of lighting products declined slightly to $3.2 million from $3.4 million during 2010 due to lower demand

for follow spotlights Lighting products have been impacted by the effects of economic conditions as significant

portion of the business is dependent on the construction or improvements of stadiums and auditoriums around the world

Foreign Revenues

Sales outside of the United States primarily from the theatre segment fell to $41.1 million from $60.1 million

in 2010 resulting in large part to sales volume in Mainland China decreasing to $26.0 million from $34.9 million in

2010 The results out of China reflect increased competition and the shifting of scheduled installations due to changing

theatre construction timelines We also experienced lower sales volume in South America Canada Mexico and Europe

The results were primarily due to the timing of the digital cinema rollout in these countries coupled with lower sales of

film equipment Export sales are sensitive to worldwide economic and political conditions that can lead to volatility

Certain areas of the world are more cost conscious than the U.S market and there are instances where our products are

priced higher than local manufacturers making it more difficult to generate sufficient profit to justif selling into these

regions Additionally foreign exchange rates and excise taxes sometimes make it difficult to market our products

overseas at reasonable selling prices

Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit increased 22.1% to $30.2 million from $24.7 million in 2010 but as percent
of total

revenue decreased to 16.4% from 18.1% in 2010 Gross profit in the theatre segment increased to $29.2 million from

$23.8 million in 2010 but as percentage of theatre sales decreased to 16.1% from 17.9% year-ago The higher gross

profit was due to the increase in sales volume while the decline in gross margin is reflective of

Higher sales of digital products which carry substantially higher revenue price points but lower gross

margins than our other products
and services

Lower screen revenues which carry higher manufacturing margins

Lower revenues from film replacement parts which historically carry strong margins

The gross profit in the lighting segment amounted to $1.0 million or gross margin of 30.9% compared to

$0.9 million or gross margin of 27.4% during 2010 The results primarily reflect favorable product mix during 2011

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses
increased 3.0% to $3.9 million from $3.8 million in 2010 but as percent

of total revenue

declined to 2.1% from 2.8% in 2010 The results principally reflect additional personnel and their associated costs to

expand our domestic sales and service marketing efforts and to expand our sales offices in Mainland China

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses rose 22.5% to $11.1 million in 2011 from $9.1 million in 2010 but as

percent
of total revenue decreased to 6.0% from 6.7% in 2010 The increase in expenses was due to severance charges of

$1.3 million during the year coupled with additional personnel and related costs necessary to manage the significant

growth in revenue experienced during the year Approximately $1.0 million of the severance charges occurred in the
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fourth quarter and were result of strategic initiative to refocus certain key areas of our Company as discussed

throughout this document

Segment Operating Income

We generated operating income in the theatre segment of $22.8 million in 2011 compared to $17.8 million in

2010 The results reflect an increase in business where product revenues rose 33.6% We also generated significantly

higher operating profit from our service business which increased to $2.4 million from $0.6 million in 2010 on revenue

increase of 79.6%

Operating income from the lighting segment rose to $0.2 million from less than $0.1 million in 2010 due to

favorable product mix

Other Financial Items

Our results for 2011 reflect loss of $0.2 million pertaining to our 44.4% share of equity in the loss from

Digital Link II LLC compared to income of $0.6 million in 2010 The change from 2010 reflects less sales of equipment

by the LLC to customers for projectors previously held in the LLC compared to 2010 The loss in 2011 primarily was

result of depreciation expense

Other income amounted to $0.07 million in 2011 compared to expense of $0.2 million in 2010 The results

primarily reflect the impact of foreign exchange gains and losses due primarily to the U.S dollar fluctuating against the

Canadian dollar from year-to-year

We recorded income tax expense of approximately $4.7 million in 2011 compared to $4.0 million in 2010 The

effective tax rate calculated as ratio of income tax expense to pretax earnings inclusive of equity method investment

income losses was approximately 31.3% for 2011 and 31.9% in 2010 The effective tax rate differs from the statutory
rates primarily as result of differing foreign and U.S tax rates applied to respective pre-tax earnings by tax jurisdiction

In addition our effective rate was lower than the prior year period in part due to estimates for certain Canadian tax

credits

For the reasons outlined herein we generated net earnings of approximately $10.3 million and basic and diluted

earnings per share of $0.72 and $0.71 in 2011 respectively compared to $8.4 million and basic and diluted earnings per
share of $0.60 and $0.59 in 2010 respectively

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the past several years we have met our working capital and capital resource needs from either our

operating or investing cash flows or combination of both We ended fiscal
year 2012 with total cash and cash

equivalents of $40.2 million compared to $39.9 million at December 31 2011 The Company reported negative

operating cash flows for the
year ended December 31 2012 This is largely due to the timing of payments related to the

higher volume of business in the latter part of 2011 The Company believes that our existing sources of liquidity

including cash and cash equivalents borrowing availability and operating cash flow will be sufficient to meet our

projected capital needs for the foreseeable future

We are party to $20 million Revolving Credit Agreement and Note collectively the Credit Agreement
with Wells Fargo Bank N.A Wells Fargo We may request an increase in the Credit Agreement of up to an

additional $5 million however any advances on the additional $5 million are subject to approval of Wells Fargo The

borrowings from the Credit Agreement are to be used for working capital purposes
and for other general corporate

purposes Our accounts receivable general intangibles and inventory secure the Credit Agreement

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest at rate equal to LIBOR plus 125 basis points 1.534% at

December 31 2012 Interest is paid on monthly basis We pay fee of 0.15% per annum on any unused portion The
Credit Agreement expires on June 30 2014 at which time all unpaid principal and interest would be due Borrowings
available under the Credit Agreement were temporarily reduced to $19.6 million at December 31 2012 due to

outstanding standby letters of credit of $0.4 million
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The Credit Agreement contains certain covenants including those relating to our financial condition The

primary financial condition covenants pertain to maintaining ratio of total liabilities to tangible net worth of less than

to and net income before taxes of $1 on rolling 4-quarter basis as defined in the Credit Agreement Other covenants

pertain to items such as certain limits on incurring additional debt or lease obligations certain limits on issuing

guarantees
and certain limits on loans advances and investments with third parties Upon the occurrence of any event of

default specified in the Credit Agreement including change in control of the Company as defined all amounts due

there under may be declared to be immediately due and payable Since the inception of the Revolving Credit Agreement

no amounts have been borrowed

As of December 31 2012 $12.6 million of the $40.2 million in cash and cash equivalents was held by our

foreign subsidiaries If these funds are needed for our operations
in the U.S we would be required to accrue and pay

U.S income taxes and foreign withholding taxes on portion
of these funds when repatriated back to the U.S

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating
activities consist of net income adjusted for non-cash items including depreciation

and amortization deferred taxes and the effect of working capital changes

Net cash used in operating activities was $0.4 million in 2012 which included net income of $5.5 million plus

non-cash charges benefits for gain on assets deferred tax expense depreciation and amortization reserve provisions

and non-cash stock compensation totaling $1.1 million Changes in working capital used cash from operating
activities

of $7.0 million This is primarily due to decrease in accounts payable as well as accruals and timing of tax deposits

partially offset by decrease in the balance of accounts unbilled and notes receivables and other current

assets Accounts payable decreased $15.5 million as the Company paid for fourth quarter 2011 inventory

purchases Accounts receivable balances decreased $6.6 million due to collections of the higher sales volume of the

prior fourth quarter 2011 as compared to the fourth quarter of 2012

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to $20.1 million during 2011 The results reflect $10.3

million in net income plus net non-cash charges of $1.2 million Changes in working capital provided
cash of $8.5

million This change is primarily
due to $13.7 million decrease in inventory and increases in customer

deposits/deferred revenue and current income taxes payable partially offset by $12.0 million increase in accounts

unbilled and notes receivables and increases in other current assets Changes in receivables inventory unbilled revenue

and customer deposits primarily resulted from the sale to significant theatre customer recorded in the latter part of the

third quarter of 2011

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to $3.6 million in 2010 which included net income of $8.4

million plus net non-cash charges of $2.7 million Changes in working capital used cash of $7.5 million driven by

increases in accounts receivable unbilled revenue inventory and other assets partially offset by increases in account

payable and in income taxes payable These working capital changes resulted from the significant increase in business

coupled
with the significantly higher price point of the digital equipment purchased and distributed

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activities amounted to $3.3 million in 2012 Cash was provided by $2.5

million distribution from our joint venture investment in Digital Link II and proceeds from the sale of assets of $3.3

million in 2012 including $3.0 million from assets previously classified as available for sale Capital expenditures in

2012 amounted to $2.5 million The 2012 capital expenditures primarily relate to our new corporate headquarters

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to $2.8 million in 2011 Investing activities during 2011 were

primarily due to capital expenditures
related to the expansion of our screen manufacturing plant in Canada

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to $5.7 million in 2010 Capital expenditures
of $6.8 million in

2010 primarily
included the purchase of the land and building at our screen business in Canada the expansion of that

facility and the construction of the Network Operating Center at our headquarters Cash of $0.9 million was provided by

distributions from our unconsolidated joint venture Digital Link II and $0.2 million was provided from our investment
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing amounted to $2.7 million in 2012 reflecting $2.8 million for the purchase of

treasury stock offset slightly for proceeds related to the stock purchase plan and certain tax benefits from share-based

arrangements

Net cash provided by fmancing activities totaled $0.6 million during 2011 The activities were due to common
stock issuances under our equity compensation plans coupled with certain tax benefits from share-based arrangements

Net cash provided by financing activities amounted to $0.6 million in 2010 The activities were due to common
stock issuances under our equity compensation plans coupled with certain tax benefits from share-based arrangements

The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates increased decreased cash and cash equivalents by $0.2

million $0.2 million and $0.1 million in the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Transactions with Related and Certain Other Parties

There were no transactions with related and certain other parties during 2012

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk Concentrations

The Companys top ten customers accounted for
approximately 47% of 2012 consolidated net revenues and

were from the theatre segment Trade accounts receivable from these customers represented approximately 36% of net
consolidated receivables at December 31 2012 Sales to CDF2 Holdings represented approximately 12% of total 2012
sales and accounts receivable from CDF2 represented 5% of net consolidated receivables The note receivable from
CDF2 had an outstanding balance of $2.2 million at December 31 2012

Additionally receivables from Belmont
Capital Group represented approximately 17% of net consolidated receivables at December 31 2012 While the

Company believes its relationships with such customers are stable most arrangements are made by purchase order and
are terminable at will by either party significant decrease or interruption in business from the Companys significant
customers could have material adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition and results of operations
The Company could also be adversely affected by such factors as changes in foreign currency rates and weak economic
and political conditions in each of the countries in which the Company sells its products

Financial instruments that
potentially expose us to concentration of credit risk principally consist of accounts

receivable and notes receivable We sell product to large number of customers in many different geographic regions
To minimize credit concentration risk we perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers financial condition or
use letters of credit

Hedging and Trading Activities

The Companys primary exposure to foreign currency fluctuations pertains to its subsidiaries in Canada and
China In certain instances the Company may enter into foreign exchange contracts to manage portion of this risk For
the year ended December 31 2012 the Company recorded approximately $0.1 million of realized and unrealized gains
associated with these contracts in its consolidated statement of operations

We do not have any trading activities that include non-exchange traded contracts at fair value
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

Our off balance sheet arrangements consist principally of leasing various assets under operating leases The

future estimated payments under these arrangements are summarized below along with our other contractual obligations

One to

Total Less than Three Three to More than

Contractual Obligations Payments One Year Years Five Years Five Years

In thousands

Postretirement benefits
192 19 42 46 85

Operating leases 4052 503 866 712 1971

Contractual cash obligations
4244 522 908 758 2056

The schedule above excludes the following items

We have issued $0.4 million standby financial letter of credit to our landlord as we completed

the buildout of the new office space which expires in early 2013 We do not expect to make any

future payments pertaining to the letter of credit

We have accrued approximately $0.2 million of unrecognized tax benefits recorded in the

financial statements as tax liability including interest and penalties in accordance with FIN 48 as

of December 31 2012 Amounts for which the year of settlement occurs cannot be reasonably

estimated

There were no other material contractual obligations other than inventory and property plant and equipment

purchases in the ordinary course of business

Seasonality

Generally our business exhibits moderate level of seasonality

Legal

See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and Item of this report for description of legal matters

Inflation

We believe that the relatively moderate rates of inflation in recent years have not had significant impact on

our net revenues or profitability Historically we have been able to offset any inflationary effects by either increasing

prices or improving cost efficiencies

Current-Year Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note to the consolidated financial statements for discussion regarding our adoption of accounting

pronouncements

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

There are no recently issued accounting pronouncements which the Company believes will materially impact its

consolidated financial statements
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

General

The following accounting policies involve judgments and estimates used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements An accounting policy is deemed to be critical if it requires an accounting estimate to be made based

on assumptions about matters that are uncertain at the time the estimate is made and if different estimates that

reasonably could have been used or changes in the accounting estimates that are reasonably likely to occur periodically
could

materially impact the consolidated fmancial statements

Our accounting policies are discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements in this report
Management believes the following critical accounting policies reflect its more significant estimates and assumptions
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when all of the following circumstances are satisfied

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

Delivery has occurred or services have been rendered

The sellers price to the buyer is fixed or determinable

Collectability is reasonably assured

The Company recognizes revenue when these criteria have been met and when title and risk of loss transfers to

the customer If an arrangement involves multiple deliverables the items are considered separate units of accounting if

the items have value on stand-alone basis and there is objective and reliable evidence of their fair values Revenues
from the arrangement are allocated to the

separate units of accounting based on their objectively determined fair value
For services revenue is recognized when the services have been rendered Revenues from service and support contracts
is deferred and recognized as earned ratably over the service

coverage periods Unbilled revenue represents revenue

recognized in accordance with the Companys revenue recognition policy for which the invoice had not been processed
and sent to the customer Revenue is generally recognized upon shipment of the product however there are certain

instances where revenue is deferred and recognized upon delivery or customer acceptance of the product as the

Company legally retains the risk of loss on these transactions until such time Estimates used in the recognition of
revenues and cost of revenues include but are not limited to estimates for product warranties price allowances and
product returns

Costs related to revenues are recognized in the same period in which the specific revenues are recorded

Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are reported in revenue Shipping and handling costs incurred by the

Company are included in cost of sales Estimates used in the recognition of revenues and cost of revenues include but
are not limited to estimates for product warranties price allowances and product returns

Inventory Valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost first-in first-out or market and include appropriate elements of

material labor and overhead Our policy is to evaluate all inventory quantities for amounts on-hand that are potentially
in excess of estimated usage requirements and to write down any excess quantities to estimated net realizable value
Inherent in the estimates of net realizable values are managements estimates related to customer demand and the

development of new technology which could make our theatre and lighting products obsolete among other items
Management has managed these risks in the past and believes that it can manage them in the future however operating
margins may suffer if they are unable to effectively manage these risks
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Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method We use an estimate of our annual effective

rate at each interim period based on the facts and circumstances at the time while the actual effective rate is calculated at

year-end Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and

operating loss and tax credit carry forwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates

expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or

settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that

includes the enactment date In assessing whether the deferred tax assets are realizable management considers whether it

is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized At December 31 2012 we

have recorded net deferred tax assets of $3.1 million If it would be determined that some or all of these assets would not

be realized valuation reserves would be required which would have material adverse affect on our results of

operations

We evaluate uncertain tax positions
in two-step process whereby we determine whether it is more likely

than not that the tax positions
will be sustained based on the technical merits of the position and for those tax

positions
that meet the more likely than not recognition threshold we would recognize the largest amount of tax benefit

that is greater
than fifty percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the related tax authority Our

uncertain tax positions are related to tax years
that remain subject to examination by the relevant taxable authorities

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The principal market risks affecting us are exposure to interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates We

market our products throughout the United States and the world As result we could be adversely affected by such

factors as changes in foreign currency
rates and weak economic conditions As majority of our sales are currently

denominated in U.S dollars strengthening
of the dollar can and sometimes has made our products less competitive in

foreign markets

Interest RatesWe have variable interest rate credit facility however we have no outstanding balances as of

December 31 2012 If we would borrow up to the maximum amount available under these facilities one percent

increase in the interest rate would increase interest expense by $0.2 million per annum Interest rate risks from our other

interest related accounts such as our postretirement obligations are not deemed significant We currently have long-term

notes receivables bearing interest rates of 15% which are recorded at fair value change in long-term interest rates for

comparable types of instruments would have the effect of us recording changes in fair value through our statement of

operations

Foreign ExchangeExposures to transactions denominated in currencies other than the entitys functional

currency are primarily related to our China and Canadian subsidiaries Fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies

create exposures which can adversely affect our results of operations From time to time as market conditions indicate

we will enter into foreign currency contracts to manage the risks associated with forecasted transactions At

December 31 2012 we had no such foreign currency contracts outstanding

portion of our cash in the China and Canadian subsidiaries is denominated in foreign currencies where

fluctuations in exchange rates will impact our cash balances in U.S dollar terms hypothetical 10% change in the

value of the U.S dollar would impact our reported cash balance by approximately $0.4 million
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MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBILITY FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of Ballantyne Strong Inc and Subsidiaries and the other information

contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K were prepared by and are the responsibility
of management The financial

statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America and necessarily include amounts based on managements best estimates and judgments

In fulfilling its responsibilities management relies on system of internal controls which provide reasonable

assurance that the financial records are reliable for preparing
financial statements and maintaining accountability of

assets Internal controls are designed to reduce the risk that material errors or irregularities in the fmancial statements

may occur and not be timely detected These systems are augmented by written policies careful selection and training of

qualified personnel an organizational structure providing
for the division of responsibilities and program of financial

operational and systems
reviews

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors composed of five non-employee directors is responsible for

recommending to the Board of Directors the independent accounting firm to be retained each year The Audit Committee

meets regularly and when appropriate separately
with the independent auditors and management to review the

Companys performance The independent auditors and the Audit Committee have unrestricted access to each other in

the discharge of their responsibilities

Is GARY CAVEY

Gary Cavey

President Chief Executive Officer and Director

Is MARY CARSTENS

Mary Carstens

Senior Vice President Treasurer and ChiefFinancial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Ballantyne Strong Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ballantyne Strong Inc and subsidiaries the
Company as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive
income stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2012 In

connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements we also have audited financial statement Schedule II
These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Companys
management Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial

statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United
States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We
believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material
respects the

financial position of Ballantyne Strong Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2012 in
conformity

with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material

respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United
States the Companys internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria established in

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission COSO and our report dated March 11 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the

Companys internal control over financial reporting

Is KPMG LLP

Omaha Nebraska

March 11 2013
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Ballantyne Strong Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

and shares in thousands except par values

December 31 December 31

2012 2011

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
40168 39889

Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful accounts of $487 in 2012 and

$142 in2Oll 26227 30579

Unbilled revenue
2586

Inventories net 10971 14920

Recoverable income taxes 2069 793

Deferred income taxes
1724 1961

Other current assets
2948 5692

Total current assets 84107 96420

Investment in joint venture
1849

Property plant and equipment net 11105 9419

Property held for sale
1810

Intangible assets net
105 262

Notes receivable
2232 2062

Deferred income taxes
1936 1596

Other assets
61 38

Total assets
99546 113456

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
16646 31924

Accrued expenses
5313 4820

Customer deposits/deferred revenue 5251 5037

Income tax payable
4135

Total current liabilities
27210 45916

Deferred revenue
3302 3569

Deferred income taxes
580 397

Other accrued expenses net of current portion
1538 351

Total liabilities 32630 50233

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders equity

Preferred stock par
value $.01 per share Authorized 1000 shares none

outstanding

Common stock par value $.01 per share Authorized 25000 shares issued 16782

and 16667 shares at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011

respectively 14051 and 14512 shares outstanding at December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively
167 167

Additional paid-in capital
37770 37234

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Foreign currency translation
269 137

Postretirement benefit obligation
46 81

Retained earnings
46903 41361

85155 78706

Less 2731 and 2155 of common shares in treasury at December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively at cost 18239 15483

Total stockholders equity
66916 63223

Total liabilities and stockholders equity
99546 113456

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Bailantyne Strong Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

in thousands except per share amounts

Years Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Net revenues 169084 184433 136335
Cost of revenues 146490 154220 111596

Gross profit 22594 30213 24739
Selling and administrative expenses

Selling 4467 3935 3822
Administrative 11456 11106 9069

Total selling and administrative
expenses 15923 15041 12891

Gain on transfer of assets 172

Gain loss on sale or disposal of assets 1332 11 22
Income from operations 8003 15183 11998

Equity in income loss ofjoint venture 10 189 582

Other income expense net 137 71 188
Earnings before income taxes 8150 15065 12392

Income tax expense 2608 4718 3958
Net earnings 5542 10347 8434

Basic earnings per share 0.39 0.72 0.60

Diluted earnings per share 0.39 0.71 0.59

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 14038 14427 14163

Diluted 14115 14485 14371

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Ballantyne Strong Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

In thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Net earnings

Adjustment to postretirement
benefit obligation

Net actuarial gain loss

Currency translation adjustment

Unrealized net change arising during period

Other comprehensive gain loss

Comprehensive income

31

406 397 546

371 396 515

5913 9951 8949

5542 10347

35

8434

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

31



Ballantyne Strong Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

and shares in thousands

Balance at December 31 2009

Net income

Other comprehensive gain

Issuance of 106 shares of common
stock upon exercise of stock options

Issuance of 51 shares of common stock

under the restricted stock plans

Issuance of 12 shares of common stock

under the employees stock purchase

plan

Income tax benefit related to stock

option plans

Share-based compensation expense

Balance at December 31 2010

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Treasury share purchase of 15 shares

Issuance of 172 shares of common
stock upon exercise of stock options

Issuance of 34 shares of common stock

under the restricted stock plans

Issuance of shares of common stock

under the employees stock purchase

plan

Income tax benefit related to stock

option plans

Share-based compensation expense

Balance at December 31 2011

Net income

Other comprehensive gain

Treasury share purchase of 576 shares

Issuance of 112 shares of common
stock under the restricted stock plans

Issuance of shares of common stock

under the employees stock purchase

plan

Share-based compensation expense

Balance at December 31 2012

Accumulated

Additional Other Total

Common Paid-In Retained Treasury Comprehensive Stockholders

Stock Capital Earnings Stock Income Loss Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

25

359

170

63223

5542
371

2756

213

175$ 42518

8434
515 515

359

151

36

156

_____________
207

340 52376

10347

396 396
100

278

164

163 35333 22580 15383
8434

358

151

36

156

207

164 36241 31014 15383
10347

100

276

163

25

359

170

167 37234 41361 15483 56
5542

371

2756

213

316 316

167 37770 46903 $_18239$ 315 66916
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Ballantyne Strong Inc and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Net earnings 5542 10347 8434

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by

operating activities

Provision for doubtful accounts 626 14 128

Provision for obsolete inventory 350 216 395

Provision for warranty
538 418 844

Depreciation and amortization 1268 1757 1490

Equity in income loss ofjoint venture 10 189 582

Gain loss on forward contracts 145 306 106

Gain loss on disposal or transfer of assets 1332 11 150
Deferred income taxes 71 1211 242

Share-based compensation expense
393 373 381

Excess tax benefits from share-based arrangements 359 156
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts unbilled and notes receivable 6402 12009 12436
Inventories 4265 13684 15656
Other current assets 2605 2761 2112
Accounts payable 15534 1418 20774

Accrued expenses
572 197 843

Customer deposits/deferred revenue 88 5774 548

Current income taxes 5382 2133 2239

Other assets 130 37

Net cash used in provided by operating activities 429 20052 3643

Cash flows from investing activities

Distribution from joint venture 2509 888

Decrease in restricted investments 239

Capital expenditures 2541 2886 6812
Proceeds from sales of assets 3334 88 26

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 3302 2798 5659
Cash flows from financing activities

Purchase of treasury stock 2756
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan

25 36

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 178 359

Excess tax benefits from share-based arrangements
359 156

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 2746 562 551

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 152 177 126

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 279 17639 1339
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 39889 22250 23589

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 40168 39889 22250

Supplemental disclosure of cash paid for

Interest 22 36 16

Income Taxes 4469 4233 3117

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activities

Common stock exchanged for stock options 100

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Ballantyne Strong Inc and Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

in thousands except share and per share amounts

Basis of Presentation

Business Description

Ballantyne Strong Inc Ballantyne or the Company Delaware corporation and its wholly owned

subsidiaries Strong Westrex Inc Strong Technical Services Inc Strong/MDI Screen Systems Inc and Strong

Westrex Beijing Trading Inc manufacture distribute integrate and service theatre and lighting systems on

worldwide basis

The Companys products are distributed to movie exhibition companies sports arenas auditoriums amusement

parks and special venues

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all majority owned and

controlled domestic and foreign subsidiaries All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been

eliminated in consolidation

Use of Management Estimates

The preparation of consolidated fmancial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results and changes in facts and

circumstances may alter such estimates and affect results of operations and financial position in future periods

Reclassijications

Certain amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto have been reclassified

to conform to the 2012 presentation

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when all of the following circumstances are satisfied

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

Delivery has occurred or services have been rendered

The sellers price to the buyer is fixed or determinable

Collectability is reasonably assured

The Company recognizes revenue when these criteria have been met and when title and risk of loss transfers to

the customer If an arrangement involves multiple deliverables the items are considered separate units of accounting if

the items have value on stand-alone basis and there is objective and reliable evidence of their fair values Revenues

from the arrangement are allocated to the separate units of accounting based on their objectively determined fair value

For services revenue is recognized when the services have been rendered Revenues from service and support contracts

is deferred and recognized as earned ratably over the service coverage periods Unbilled revenue represents revenue

recognized in accordance with the Companys revenue recognition policy for which the invoice had not been processed

and sent to the customer Revenue is generally recognized upon shipment of the product however there are certain

instances where revenue is deferred and recognized upon delivery or customer acceptance of the product as the
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Company legally retains the risk of loss on these transactions until such time Estimates used in the recognition of

revenues and cost of revenues include but are not limited to estimates for product warranties price allowances and

product returns

Costs related to revenues are recognized in the same period in which the specific revenues are recorded

Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are reported in revenue Shipping and handling costs incurred by the

Company are included in cost of sales Estimates used in the recognition of revenues and cost of revenues include but

are not limited to estimates for product warranties price allowances and product returns

Accounts and Notes Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest Amounts collected on

trade accounts receivable are included in net cash provided by operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash

flows The Company determines the allowance for doubtful accounts based on several factors including overall customer

credit quality historical write-off experience and specific analysis that projects the ultimate collectability of the

account As such these factors may change over time causing the reserve level to adjust accordingly

Notes receivables are recorded at estimated fair value at December 31 2012 and accrue interest at 15% The

Company estimates allowances for doubtful accounts based on the Companys best estimates of the amount of probable

credit losses pertaining to the notes receivables based on ongoing monitoring of the counterpartys financial position

and results of operations

Changes in reserves for doubtful accounts are reflected in operating cash flows as an adjustment to net income

Past due accounts are written off for accounts and notes receivable when our efforts have been unsuccessful in collecting

amounts due

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost first-in first-out or market and include appropriate elements of

material labor and manufacturing overhead Inventory balances are net of reserves of slow moving or obsolete inventory

based on managements review of inventories on hand compared to estimated future usage and sales technological

changes and product pricing

Digital and film projection equipment is provided to potential customers for consignment and demonstration

purposes
under customer use agreements Revenues are subsequently recorded in accordance with the Companys

normal revenue recognition policies Consignment inventory is reviewed for impairment by comparing the inventory to

the estimated future usage and sales Digital and lighting equipment on consignment amounted to approximately $0.06

million and $0.5 million at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Intangible Assets

The Companys amortizable intangibles which are subject to recovery
consist of trademarks customer

relationships and non-competition agreements We evaluate our intangible assets for impairment when there is evidence

that events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable Intangible assets

with definite lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values

Significant judgments and assumptions are required in the impairment evaluations

Property Plant and Equipment

Significant expenditures for the replacement or expansion of property plant and equipment are capitalized

Depreciation of property plant and equipment is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using

the straight-line method For financial reporting purposes assets are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of

20 years for buildings and improvements life of the related lease for leasehold improvements to 10 years
for

machinery and equipment years for furniture and fixtures and years for computers and accessories The Company

generally uses accelerated methods of depreciation for income tax purposes The Company reviews long-lived assets for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be

recoverable The recoverability of property plant and equipment is based on managements estimates of future

undiscounted cash flows and these estimates may vary
due to number of factors some of which may be outside of
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managements control To the extent that the Company is unable to achieve managements forecasts of future income it

may become necessary to record impairment losses for any excess of the net book value of property plant and

equipment over their fair value

The Company incurs maintenance costs on all of its major equipment Repair and maintenance costs are

expensed as incurred

Assets Held For Sale

The Company classifies certain assets as held for sale Upon classification as held for sale the asset is measured

at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell and depreciation ceases To the extent the Company is

unable to sell the assets at or above the carrying amount an impairment loss is recorded for the excess of the carrying

amount over the fair value less costs to sell

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method The Company uses an estimate of its

annual effective rate at each interim period based on the facts and circumstances at the time while the actual effective

rate is calculated at year-end Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences

attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their

respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit
carry

forwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured

using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are

expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized

in income in the period that includes the enactment date In assessing whether the deferred tax assets are realizable

management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be

realized

The Companys uncertain tax positions are evaluated in two-step process whereby the Company
determines whether it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained based on the technical merits of the

position and for those tax positions that meet the more likely than not recognition threshold the Company would

recognize the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement

with the related tax authority The Company accrues interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in the

statements of income as income tax expense

Other Taxes

Sales taxes assessed by governmental authorities including sales use and excise taxes are on net basis and

therefore the presentation of these taxes is excluded from revenues and is shown as liability on the balance sheet until

remitted to the appropriate taxing authorities

Research and Development

Research and development related costs are charged to operations in the period incurred Such costs amounted

to approximately $0.01 million $0.5 million and $0.9 million for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively

Advertising Costs

Advertising and promotional costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to approximately $0.7 million

$0.9 million and $0.8 million for the
years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Fair Value of Financial and Derivative Instruments

The Company follows the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued authoritative guidance which

defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value

measurements As defined in the FASB guidance fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date
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The FASB guidance establishes three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the

transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date Inputs refers broadly to the

assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability including assumptions about risk The

categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value

measurement Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and disclosed in one of the following

three categories

Level inputs to the valuation techniques are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

Level inputs to the valuation techniques are other than quoted prices but are observable for the assets

or liabilities either directly or indirectly

Level inputs to the valuation techniques are unobservable for the assets or liabilities

The following tables present the Companys financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value based upon

the level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall as of December 31 2012 and 2011

Fair Values Measured on Recurring Basis at December 31 2012

Level Level Level Total

in thousands

Cash and cash equivalents 40168 40168

Notes Receivable 2232 2232

Fair Values Measured on Recurring Basis at December 31 2011

Level Level Level Total

in thousands

Cash and cash equivalents 39889 39889

Foreign currency
forward contracts 4723 4723

Notes Receivable 2062 2062

Quantitative information about the Companys level fair value measurements at December 31 2012 is set forth below

Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable input Range

in

thousands

Notes Receivable 2232 Discounted cash flow Probability of Default 0%

Prepayment rates 0%
Loss severity 0%

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Companys notes receivable are

prepayment rates probability of default and loss severity in the event of default Significant increases decreases in any

of these inputs in isolation would result in significantly lower higher fair value measurement Generally change in

the assumption used for the probability of default is accompanied by directionally similar change in the assumption

used for the loss severity and directionally opposite change in the assumption used for prepayment rates

The following table reconciles the beginning and ending balance of the Companys Notes Receivable fair

value

2012 2011

in thousands

Notes Receivable balance beginning of period 2062

Issuance of new notes 170 2062

Notes Receivable balance end of period 2232 2062
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The fair value of the foreign currency
forward exchange contracts is measured based on the total amount of

currency to be purchased and forward exchange rates as of the period end See footnote 14 for additional information on

the Companys foreign exchange contracts

The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities including accounts receivable accounts payable

and accrued expenses reported in the consolidated balance sheets equal or approximate their fair values due to the short-

term nature of these instruments All non-financial assets that are not recognized or disclosed at fair value in the

financial statements on recurring basis which includes non-financial long-lived assets are measured at fair value in

certain circumstances for example when there is evidence of impairment During 2012 we did not have any

significant non-recurring measurements of nonfinancial assets or liabilities

The canying values of all other financial assets and liabilities including accounts receivable accounts payable

and accrued expenses reported in the consolidated balance sheets equal or approximate their fair values due to the short-

term nature of these instruments

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All short-term highly liquid financial instruments are classified as cash equivalents in the consolidated balance

sheets and statements of cash flows Generally these instruments have maturities of three months or less from date of

purchase

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per
share have been computed on the basis of the weighted average number of shares of

common stock outstanding Diluted earnings per share has been computed on the basis of the weighted average number

of shares of common stock outstanding after giving effect to potential common shares from dilutive stock options and

certain non-vested shares of restricted stock The following table provides reconciliation between basic and diluted

earnings per share

2012 2011 2010

in thousands except per share amounts

Basic earnings per share

Earnings applicable to common stock 5542 10347 8434

Weighted average common shares outstanding 14038 14427 14163

Basic earnings per share 0.39 0.72 0.60

Diluted earnings per share

Earnings applicable to common stock 5542 10347 8434

Weighted average common shares outstanding 14038 14427 14163

Assuming conversion of options and restricted stock awards

outstanding 77 58 208

Weighted average common shares outstanding as adjusted 14115 14485 14371

Diluted earnings per share 0.39 0.71 0.59

Options to purchase 189025 52200 and 50000 shares of common stock were outstanding as of December 31

2012 2011 and 2010 respectively but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per shares as the

options exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common shares for the respective periods

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company recognizes compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and

directors based on estimated values on the date of grant The Company uses the straight-line amortization method over

the vesting period of the awards The Company has historically issued shares upon exercise of stock options or vesting

of restricted stock from new stock issuances The Company estimates the fair value of restricted stock awards based

upon the market price of the underlying common stock on the date of grant The fair value of stock options granted and

shares issued under the employee stock purchase plan is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model No

share-based compensation cost was capitalized as part of inventory as of December 31 2012 and 2011
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Post-Retirement Benefits

The Company recognizes
the overfunded or underfunded position of defined benefit postretirement plan as an

asset or liability in the balance sheet measures the plans assets and its obligations
that detennine its funded status as of

December 31 and recognizes the changes in the funded status through comprehensive income in the year
in which the

changes occur

Foreign Currency Translation

For foreign subsidiaries the environment in which the business conducts operations
is considered the functional

currency generally
the local currency The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into the United

States dollar at the foreign exchange rates in effect at the end of the period Revenue and expenses
of foreign subsidiaries

are translated using an average of the foreign exchange rates in effect during the period Translation adjustments are not

included in determining net earnings but are presented in comprehensive income within the consolidated statements of

comprehensive income Transaction gains and losses that arise from foreign exchange rate fluctuations on transactions

denominated in currency other than the functional currency are included in the statements of operations as

incurred Since the undistributed earnings of the Companys foreign subsidiaries are considered to be indefinitely

reinvested the components of accumulated other comprehensive income loss have not been tax effected

Warranty Reserves

Historically the Company has generally granted warranty to its customers for one-year period following the

sale of manufactured film projection equipment and on selected repaired equipment for one-year period In most

instances the digital products are covered by the manufacturing firms OEM warranty however there are certain

customers where the Company may grant warranties in excess of the manufacturers warranty for digital products The

Company accrues for these costs at the time of sale or repair The following table summarizes warranty activity for the

three years
ended December 31 2012

2012 2011 2011

in thousands

Warranty accrual at beginning of period
1028 848 378

Charged to expense
416 546 841

Amounts written off net of recoveries 688 379 378

Foreign currency translation adjustment
14 13

Warranty accrual at end of period
770 1028 848

Contingencies

The Company accrues for contingencies when its assessments indicate that it is probable that liability has

been incurred and an amount can be reasonably estimated The Companys estimates are based on currently available

facts and its estimates of the ultimate outcome or resolution Actual results may differ from the Companys estimates

resulting in an impact positive or negative on earnings

Current- Year Adoption ofAccounting Pronouncements

In June 2011 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU No 2011-05 Presentation of

Comprehensive Income which amends ASC 220 Comprehensive Income by requiring all non-owner changes in

shareholders equity be presented either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but

consecutive statements The guidance was effective retrospectively for fiscal years
and interim periods within those

years beginning after December 15 2011 In December 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-12 Deferral of the

Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassflcations of Items Out of Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No 2011-05 which defers certain portions of ASU No 2011-

05 indefinitely and will be further deliberated by the FASB at future date The Company adopted the requirements of

ASU 2011-05 by presenting single Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income immediately

following the Statement of Income There was no other impact on the Companys condensed consolidated financial

statements
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In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU No 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement Topic 820 Amendments to

Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in US GAAP and IFRSs This update is

intended to develop common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements and improve understandability The

Company prospectively adopted the requirements of ASU 2011-04 with expanded disclosures related to its fair value

measurements This update did not have material effect on the condensed consolidated financial statements

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

There are no recently issued accounting pronouncements which the Company believes will materially impact its

consolidated financial statements

Digital Link II Joint Venture

Investment in Digital Link II

On March 2007 the Company entered into an agreement with RealD to form an operating entity Digital Link

II LLC the LLC Under the agreement the LLC was formed with the Company and RealD as the only two members
with membership interests of 44.4% and 55.6% respectively The LLC was formed for

purposes of commercializing
certain 3D technology and to fund the deployment of digital projector systems and servers to exhibitors

The Company accounts for its investment by the equity method Under this method the Company recorded its

proportionate share of LLC net income or loss based on the LLCs financial statements as of December 31 2012
December 23 2011 and December 24 2010 The LLC uses four 13-week periods for total of 52 weeks to align its

fiscal
year end with that of its majority interest holder RealD

The Companys portion of gain loss including the income described below of the LLC was $0.01 million

$0.2 million and $0.6 million for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

In the past the Company sold digital theatre
projection equipment in the normal course of business to the

LLC The LLC in turn provides and sells the digital projection equipment to third party customers under system use

agreements or through sales agreements Revenue recognized by the Company on the sale transaction to the LLC is

limited by its 44.4% ownership in the joint venture which will be recognized upon sale of the equipment to the third

parties Sales to the LLC approximated $4.7 million during 2010 There were no sales to the LLC during 2012 and
2011 However the Company recognized $0.05 million of gross margin during 2012 related to the LLCs sale of

equipment to third parties Revenue recognized by the Company was $4.1 million during 2010 Revenue recognized by
the Company on the sale transaction to the LLC is limited by its 44.4% ownership in the joint venture which will be

recognized upon sale of the equipment to the third parties The total receivable balance due from the LLC was

insignificant at December 31 2012 and 2011

During the third quarter of 2011 the LLC made significant sale of equipment to certain third party customers

that resulted in pre-tax gain of approximately $0.8 million During the second quarter of 2010 the LLC made

significant sale of equipment to third party customer that resulted in the LLC recording pre-tax gain on the sale of

assets of approximately $2.8 million

During the first quarter of 2012 the Company received $1.5 million return of investment in the LLC During
the third quarter of 2012 the Company received $1.0 million distribution from the LLC The excess of the distribution

received in the third quarter over the Companys carrying value in the LLC of approximately $0.7 million is included in

accrued expenses The distribution in excess of the carrying value will be deferred until the Company determines that

future contributions to the LLC will not be required The Company received no distributions from the LLC in

2011 During the third quarter of 2010 the Company received $0.9 million return of the investment in the LLC

40



Inventories

Inventories consist of the following

December 31 December 31

2012 2011

in thousands

Raw materials and components 3247 5270

Work in process
1018 301

Finished goods 6706 9349

10971 14920

The inventory balances are net of reserves of approximately $1.3 million and $2.5 million as of December 31

2012 and 2011 respectively

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment include the following

December 31 December 31
2012 2011

in thousands

Land 65$ 63

Buildings and improvements 7528 5896

Machinery and equipment 4858 4680

Office furniture and fixtures 2404 1988

Total properties cost 14855 12627

Less accumulated depreciation 3750 3208

Net property plant and equipment 11105 9419

Depreciation expense approximated $1.0 million $1.1 million and $0.9 million for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively For discussion regarding reclassifying certain assets as held for sale

refer to Note

Corporate-wide strategic initiative

Restructuring

In the fourth quarter of 2011 the Board of Directors and management of the Company approved corporate-

wide strategic initiative to refocus its worldwide digital equipment distribution business services platform and cinema

screen manufacturing business and exit the analog projector manufacturing business The strategic initiative consisted of

selling the Companys Omaha Nebraska-based analog projector facility and manufacturing equipment and relocating its

corporate headquarters to new smaller location in Omaha which also houses its Network Operations Center Total

life to date severance charges for the strategic initiative that began in 2011 are approximately $1.4 million including

$0.1 million in 2012 The strategic initiative is expected to be completed by the end of the second quarter of 2013

The following reconciles the activity in the restructuring related severance accruals for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 which are included in accrued expenses

2012 2011

in thousands

Accrued severance beginning of period
963

Severance expense included in Administrative Expenses 107 1261

Severance paid 982 298

Accrued severance end of period
88 963
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Assets Held For Sale

In connection with the strategic initiative the Company reclassified its Nebraska-based analog projector

facility corporate headquarters and manufacturing equipment to held for sale The assets were recorded at their canying

value of $1.8 million at December 31 2011 as it was lower than the assets fair value less costs to sell The following

table summarizes assets held for sale

Real Estate

Machinery and Equipment

Total

December 31 December 31
2012 2011

In thousands

1696

114

1810

During the first quarter of 2012 the Company sold the analog projector manufacturing machinery and

equipment previously classified as held for sale The equipment was sold in March 2012 for approximately $1.0 million

resulting in gain of approximately $0.9 million In May 2012 the Company completed sale leaseback transaction for

the analog projector and corporate headquarters facility The net cash proceeds from the transaction were $2.0

million The Company leased the facility back at no cash rent through November 2012 However the $0.2 million

estimated fair value of the lease was recognized as rent expense over the lease period and was included in the net

proceeds to calculate the $0.5 million gain resulting from the sale of the facility

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consisted of the following at December 31 2012

Intangible assets subject to

amortization

Customer relationships

Trademarks

Non-competition agreement

Total

Useful life Gross

Years

4-9 1720

239

3-5 155

2114

Accumulated

amortization Net

in thousands

1615 105

239
155

2009 105

Intangible assets consisted of the following at December 31 2011

Intangible assets subject to

amortization

Customer relationships

Trademarks

Non-competition agreement

Total

Useful life Gross

Years

4-9 1720

239

3-5 155

2114

Accumulated

amortization Net

in thousands

1476 244

222 17

154 ____________

1852 262

During 2011 the Company wrote-off certain intangibles pertaining to the Technobeam product line which was
discontinued during the year There was no impact to earnings as the intangibles were fully amortized and had no net

book value Any other change in the cost and accumulated amortization of the identifiable assets was due to certain

intangibles recorded in foreign currency and therefore affected by fluctuations in the exchange rate Intangible assets

other than goodwill with definitive lives are amortized over their useful lives
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The Company recorded amortization expense relating to other identifiable intangible assets of $0.2 million

$0.4 million and $0.4 million during each of the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

The following table shows the Companys estimated future amortization expense
related to intangible assets for

the next three years
at which time the assets are expected to be fully amortized All amounts in thousands

Amount

in thousands

2013
43

2014 43

2015
19

Accrued Expenses

The major components of current accrued expenses are as follows

December 31 December 31

2012 2011

in thousands

Employee related 2091 1775

Legal and professional fees 293 117

Outside commissions 471 26

Warranty obligation
770 1028

Joint venture excess distributions 650

Interest and taxes
734 789

Post-retirement benefit obligation
19 17

Severance and benefits 88 963

Other
197 105

Total 5313 4820

The major components of long-term accrued expenses are as follows

December 31 December 31

2012 2011

in thousands

Post-retirement benefit obligation
328 300

Employee related
212

Rent and leasehold improvements 972

Other
26 51

Total 1538 351

Debt

The Company is party to $20 million Revolving Credit Agreement and Note collectively the Credit

Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank N.A Wells Fargo The Company may request an increase in the Credit

Agreement of up to an additional $5 million however any advances on the additional $5 million are subject to approval

of Wells Fargo The borrowings from the Credit Agreement are to be used for working capital purposes and for other

general corporate purposes The Companys accounts receivable general intangibles and inventory secure the Credit

Agreement

Borrowings under the Credit Agreement bear interest at rate equal to LIBOR plus 125 basis points 1.53% at

December 31 2012 Interest is paid on monthly basis The Company pays
fee of 0.15% per annum on any unused

portion The Credit Agreement expires on June 30 2014 at which time all unpaid principal and interest is due

Borrowings available under the Credit Agreement were temporarily reduced to $19.6 million at December 31 2012 due

to outstanding letters of credit of $0.4 million
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The Credit Agreement contains certain covenants including those relating to our financial condition The

primary financial condition covenants pertain to the Company maintaining ratio of total liabilities to tangible net worth

of less than to and net income before taxes of $1 on rolling 4-quarter basis as defined in the Credit Agreement
Other covenants pertain to items such as certain limits on incurring additional debt or lease obligations certain limits on

issuing guarantees and certain limits on loans advances and investments with third parties Upon the occurrence of any
event of default specified in the Credit Agreement including change in control of the Company as defined in the

Credit Agreement all amounts due there under may be declared to be immediately due and payable Since the inception

of the Credit Agreement no amounts have been borrowed

10 Income Taxes

Income loss before income taxes consists of

United States

Foreign

2012 2011 2010

in thousands

4783 7351 1022

3367 7714 11370

8150 15065 12392

Income tax expense benefit attributable to income from continuing operations consists of

Current

Deferred

Total

Current

Deferred

Total

Foreign

Current

Deferred

Total

324 11

104 32

220 43

Income tax expense attributable to income loss from continuing operations differed from the amounts

computed by applying the U.S Federal income tax rate to pretax income from continuing operations as follows

Amount Amount

amounts in thousands

2771 34.0 5122 34.0

145 0.9

589 3.9

_________ _________
40 0.3

_________ _________

________ ________ 4718 31.3

Federal

State

2012 2011 2010

in thousands

1257 3802 544

317 1338 233

1574 2464 777

153

29

182

1118

266
852

2608

1814

220

2034

4718

3151

13
3138

3958

2012

Expected federal income tax expense

State income taxes net of federal benefit

Foreign tax rates varying from 34%

Other

Total

2011 2010

20

204
79

2608

1.5

2.5
1.0

32.0

Amount

4213

28

373
90

_________

3958
_________

34.0

0.2

3.0
0.7

31.9
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities were comprised of the following

December 31

2012 2011

in thousands

Deferred tax assets

Deferred revenue
1462 1495

Non-deductible accruals
621 290

Inventory reserves
573 1050

Stock compensation expense
243 49

Warranty reserves
220 102

Uncollectible receivable reserves
211 404

Accrued group health insurance claims
150 86

Restructuring reserves
32 337

Net operating losses
219

Depreciation
and amortization

148 86

Net deferred tax assets 3660 4118

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation
and amortization

578

Equity in loss ofjoint venture
914

Other
44

Net deferred tax liabilities
580 958

Net deferred tax assets 3080 3160

Federal and state income taxes have not been provided on accumulated but undistributed earnings of foreign

subsidiaries aggregating approximately $20.6 million at December 31 2012 as these earnings have been permanently

reinvested in the business The determination of the amount of the unrecognized deferred tax liability related to the

undistributed earnings is not practicable

The Company has examinations not yet initiated for Federal purposes
for fiscal years

2005 through 2012 In

most cases the Company has examinations open for State or local jurisdictions based on the particular jurisdictions

statute of limitations The Company does not currently have any examinations in process

Estimated amounts related to estimated underpayment of income taxes including interest and penalties are

classified as component of tax expense
in the consolidated statements of operations and were not material for the years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 Amounts accrued for estimated underpayment of income taxes amounted to

$0.2 million as of December 31 2012 and 2011 The accruals largely relate to state tax matters

11 Note Receivable

During 2011 the Company entered into certain unsecured notes receivable arrangements with CDF2

Holdings LLC pertaining to the sale and installation of digital projection equipment The notes receivable accrue

interest at rate of 15% per annum which is to be paid
in accordance with an agreed-upon cash flow schedule as

defined Interest not paid in any particular year is added to the principal and accrues interest at 15% The Company has

recorded the notes receivable at their fair value See note for additional information on the fair value of the notes
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12 Deferred Revenue

The Company deferred revenue associated with extended warranties provided to third party exhibitor in

2011 The Company expects to recognize the majority of the revenue over period of approximately years when all

conditions of revenue recognition have been met The following summarizes the amounts included in deferred revenue
related to extended warranties

December 31 December 31
2012 2011

in thousands
Extended

warranty deferrals expected to be recognized within

oneyear 221 74

Extended warranty deferrals expected to be recognized after

one year 3347 3568
Total revenue deferred for extended warranty 3568 3642

13 Stock Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and
directors based on estimated fair values Share-based compensation expense included in

selling and administrative

expenses approximates the following

2012 2011 2010

in thousands
Share based compensation expense 393 373 381

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Companys 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan 2010 Plan provides the Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors with the discretion to grant stock options stock appreciation rights restricted shares restricted stock

units performance shares or performance units Vesting terms vary with each grant and may be subject to vesting upon
change in control of the Company The total number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2010 Plan was

600000 shares During 2012 the Company awarded 139000 options and 56000 restricted stock shares under the 2010
Plan No shares were granted during 2011 or 2010 At December 31 2012 405000 shares were reserved for granting
under the 2010 Plan

Options

As noted above under the 2010 Plan the Company granted options to purchase 139000 shares of the

Companys common stock
during the year ended December 31 2012 Options to purchase shares of common stock were

granted with exercise prices equal to the fair value of the common stock on the date of grant and vest over four-year
period

During 2011 and 2010 the Board of Directors granted non-qualified stock options to purchase 2200 shares and
50000 shares respectively of the Companys common stock upon hiring members of management The options vest
over periods of one to three years The options were issued at an exercise price based on the fair market value of the

Companys common stock on the date of grant and expire 10 years after the date of grant These options were granted
outside of the Companys existing stock compensation plans pursuant to applicable regulations allowing for such grant

The weighted average grant date fair value of stock options granted in 2012 2011 and 2010 was $2.51 $2.00
and $5.12 respectively The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using Black
Scholes valuation model with the following weighted average assumptions

2012 2011 2010

Expected dividend yield at date of grant 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate .30% 1.09% 0.50%
Expected stock price volatility 57.00% 64.51% 67.30%

Expected life of options in years 6.0 4.0 6.5
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The risk-free interest rate assumptions were based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the

grant The expected volatility was based on historical monthly price changes of the Companys stock based on the

expected life of the options at the date of grant The expected
life of options is the average

number of years the

Company estimates that options will be outstanding The Company considers groups of associates that have similar

historical exercise behavior separately for valuation purposes

The following table summarizes the Companys activities with respect to its stock options

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Number Exercise Remaining Aggregate

of Price Contractual Intrinsic

Options Per Share Term Value

in years in thousands

Outstanding at December 31 2011 52200 8.14 8.86

Granted 139000 4.70

Exercised

Forfeited
___________

Outstanding at December 31 2012 191200 5.64 8.69

Exercisable at December 31 2012 35533 8.06 7.88

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total that would have been received by the option

holders if all in-the-money options had been exercised on the date indicated

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31

2012

Options Outstanding at Options Exercisable at

December 31 2012 December 31 2012

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average average

remaining exercise remaining exercise

Number contractual price Number contractual price

of life in per of life in per

Range of option exercise price options years option options years option

$4.07 to $8.32 191200 8.69 5.64 35533 7.88 8.06

As of December 31 2012 155667 stock option awards were non-vested Unrecognized compensation costs

related to all stock options outstanding amounted to $0.4 million at December 31 2012 which is expected to be

recognized over weighted-average period of 2.8 years

Restricted Stock Plans

The Companys 2005 Restricted Stock Plan the 2005 Plan provides for the grant of restricted stock awards

total of 250000 shares were reserved for issuance under the 2005 Plan which is set to expire at September

2013 These shares are subject to restrictions on transferability and other restrictions if any as the Compensation

Committee may impose During 2012 the Company awarded 28210 restricted shares under the 2005 Plan as partial

payment under the Companys 2010 Short-Term Incentive Plan During 2011 20959 shares of restricted stock were

granted under this Plan as partial payment under the Companys 2010 Short-Term Incentive Plan The shares issued in

2012 and 2011 under the 2005 Plan vested and became unrestricted immediately At December 31 2012 41310 shares

remain available for issuance under the 2005 Plan

The Ballantyne Strong Inc Non-Employee Directors Restricted Stock Plan the Non-Employee Plan

provides for the award of restricted shares to outside directors total of 250000 shares are reserved for issuance under

the Non-Employee Plan During 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company granted 28200 12600 and 10200 shares under

the Non-Employee Plan Shares issued under the Non-Employee Plan vest the day preceding the Companys Annual
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Meeting of Stockholders in the year following issuance At December 31 2012 148876 shares remain available for

issuance under the Plan

In connection with the restricted stock granted to certain employees and non-employee directors the Company
accrues compensation expense based on the estimated number of shares expected to be issued utilizing the most current

information available to the Company at the date of the financial statements The Company estimates the fair value of

restricted stock awards based upon the market price of the underlying common stock on the date of grant

As noted above the Company awarded total of 112410 33559 and 51230 restricted shares under the 2010

Plan the 2005 Plan and the Non-Employee Plan during 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The weighted average grant

date fair value of restricted stock awarded in 2012 2011 and 2010 was $5.16 $6.92 and $4.88 respectively In

connection with the restricted stock granted to certain employees and non-employee directors the Company accrues

compensation expense based on the estimated number of shares expected to be issued utilizing the most current

information available to the Company at the date of the financial statements The Company estimates the fair value of

the restricted stock awards based upon the market price of the underlying common stock on the date of grant

As of December 31 2012 the total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock

awarded was approximately $0.3 million which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of 2.4

years

The following table summarizes restricted stock activity

Number of Weighted

Restricted Average

Stock Grant Date

Shares Fair Value

Nonvested at December 31 2011 12600 5.93

Granted 112410 5.16

Shares vested 40810 5.22

Shares forfeited

Nonvested at December 31 2012 84200 5.24

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Companys Employee Stock Purchase Plan provides for the purchase of shares of Company common stock

by eligible employees at per share purchase price equal to 85% of the fair market value of share of Company
common stock at either the beginning or end of the offering period as defined whichever is lower Purchases are made

through payroll deductions of up to 10% of each participating employees salary The maximum number of shares that

can be purchased by participants in any offering period is 2000 shares Additionally the Plan has set certain limits as

defmed in regard to the number of shares that may be purchased by all eligible employees during an offering period At

December 31 2012 65753 shares of common stock remained available for issuance under the Plan which is set to

expire in October 2013

The estimated grant date fair value of purchase rights outstanding under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan was

calculated using the Black- Scholes option pricing model using weighted average assumptions as follows

2012 2011 2010

Expected dividend yield at date of grant 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Expected stock price volatility 15.90% 39.72% 56.94%

Risk-free interest rate 0.15% 0.12% 0.30%

Expected term in years 1.0 1.0 1.0

Estimated grant date fair value 0.88 1.81 4.04

Compensation expense recorded during 2012 2011 and 2010 related to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan was

insignificant At December 31 2012 the total unrecognized estimated compensation cost was insignificant
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14 Foreign Exchange Contracts

The Companys primary exposure to foreign currency
fluctuations pertains to its subsidiaries in Canada and

China In certain instances the Company may enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage portion of this

risk The Company has not designated its foreign exchange forward contracts as hedges

The gross
fair value of derivative instruments none of which are designated as hedging instruments consisted

of

Asset Derivatives

December 31 December 31

in thousands Classification 2012 2011

Foreign exchange forward contracts Other current liabilities 4723

The above fair value at December 31 2011 is offset against $4.7 million in other current liabilities resulting in

an immaterial net liability All cash flows related to our foreign currency exchange contracts are classified as operating

cash flows We recognized in other income the following realized and unrealized gains from foreign currency forward

exchange contracts

in thousands Classification 2012 2011 2010

Foreign exchange forward contracts Other Income Loss 145 349 49

See Note for further information related to the Companys foreign exchange forward contracts

15 Compensation and Benefit Plans

Bonus Plans

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors administers Short-Term Incentive Plan the Plan
The Plan is an annual incentive program that provides certain officers and key employees bonuses in the form of cash or

restricted stock or combination of both if the Company achieves certain financial goals Each payout is further subject

to the achievement of certain individual goals as defined in the Plan The Company has recorded
expenses

related to the

Plan of approximately $0.6 million $0.5 million and $0.6 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The bonuses are

generally paid through distribution of cash and restricted stock

Retirement Plan

The Company sponsors defined contribution 401-K plan the Plan for all eligible employees Pursuant to

the provisions of the Plan employees may defer up to 100% of their compensation The Company will match 50% of the

amount deferred up to 6% of their compensation The contributions made to the Plan by the Company was

approximately $0.2 million for each of the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
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Postretirement Health Care

The Company sponsors postretirement health care plan the Plan for two former executives and their

spouses The Companys policy is to fund the cost of the Plan as expenses are incurred The costs of the postretirement

benefits were accrued over the employees service lives The following table sets forth the Plans benefit obligations fair

value of plan assets and funded status at December 31 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

in thousands

Reconciliation of benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at January 315 318

Interest cost 13 14

Benefits paid 17 10
Contributions by plan participants

Actuarial gain loss 32

Benefit obligation at December 31 347 315

Fair value of plan assets at December 31

Funded status at end of
year 347 315

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of

Noncurrent assets

Current liabilities 19 17
Noncurrent liabilities 328 300
Accumulated other comprehensive income 46 81

Net amount recognized 393 398

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31 2012 and 2011 consists of

2012 2011

in thousands

Net actuarial gain 46 81

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 46 81

Net periodic benefit cost recognized in the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 was

2012 2011 2010

in thousands

Interest cost 13 14 15

Amortization of gain

Net periodic benefit cost recognized 10

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income in

the years ended December 31 20122011 and 2010 are as follows

2012 2011 2010

in thousands

Net actuarial gain loss 32 10 21
Amortization of gain loss

Total recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income loss 35 30
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost

and accumulated other comprehensive

income 45 25
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For the defined postretirement
benefits plan amortization of the net gain from accumulated other

comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost to be recognized in the next fiscal year
is expected to be

insignificant

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

were as follows

December 31

2012 2011 2010

Discount rate 3.60% 4.25% 5.25%

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A

Health care cost trend rate 7.0% 8.0% 9.0%

Weighted average assumptions used to detennine net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 were as follows

2012 2011 2010

Discount rate 4.25% 5.25% 5.75%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan

assets N/A N/A N/A

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A

Health care cost trend rate 8.0% 9.0% 9.0%

Assumed health care trend rates have significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans 1%

change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects

1% Increase 1% Decrease

in thousands

Effect on total service and interest cost components of periodic

postretirement health care benefit cost

Effect on the health care component of the accumulated

postretirement benefit obligation
42 38

For measurement purposes 7.0% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits

was assumed for 2012 The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 6.0% through 2014 and remain at that level

thereafter The Company expects to contribute $0.02 million to its postretirement benefit plan in 2013

The benefits expected to be paid from the postretirement
benefit plan are as follows

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018-2021

in thousands

Benefits expected to be paid 19 20 21 22 23 85

The expected benefits are based on the same assumptions used to measure the Companys benefit obligation at

December 31 2012 and include estimated future employee service if any
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16 Leases

The Company and its subsidiaries lease plant and office facilities autos and equipment under operating leases

expiring through 2023 These leases generally contain renewal options and the Company expects to renew or replace
certain of these leases in the ordinary course of business Rent expense under operating lease agreements amounted to

approximately $0.6 million $0.4 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
respectively

The Companys future minimum lease payments for operating leases are as follows

Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

in thousands

Operating lease payments

due 4052 503 524 342 353 359 1971

17 Contingencies and Concentrations

Concentrations

The Companys top ten customers accounted for approximately 47% of 2012 consolidated net revenues and

were from the theatre segment Trade accounts receivable from these customers represented approximately 36% of net

consolidated receivables at December 31 2012 Sales to CDF2 Holdings represented approximately 12% of total 2012
sales and account receivable from CDF2 represented 5% of net consolidated receivables The note receivable from
CDF2 had an outstanding balance of $2.2 million at December 31 2012 Additionally receivables from Belmont

Capital Group represented approximately 17% of net consolidated receivables at December 31 2012 While the

Company believes its relationships with such customers are stable most arrangements are made by purchase order and
are terminable at will by either

party significant decrease or interruption in business from the Companys significant

customers could have material adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition and results of operations

Self-Insurance

The Company is self-insured up to certain stop loss limits for group health insurance Accruals for claims

incurred but not paid as of December 31 2012 and 2011 are included in accrued expenses in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets The Companys policy is to accrue the employee health benefit accruals based on historical

information along with certain assumptions about future events

Litigation

The Company is involved from time to time in certain legal disputes in the ordinary course of business No
such disputes individually or in the aggregate are expected to have material effect on its business or financial

condition at December 31 2012

18 Stock Repurchase Program

On December 22 2011 the Company announced that its Board of Directors adopted stock repurchase

program authorizing the repurchase of up to $8 million of the Companys outstanding common stock pursuant to plan

adopted under Rule 0b5- of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended On August 2012 the Company
announced that its Board discontinued the repurchase program prior to having repurchased the full amount of common
stock originally authorized
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19 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

The following table summarizes the activity in the different components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive

Income loss for the three years
ended December 31 2012

Postretirement Foreign

Benefit Currency

Obligation Translation Total

in thousands

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss at

December31 2009 111 286$ 175

Other comprehensive gain loss 31 546 515

Accumulated other comprehensive income at

December31 2010 80 260 340

Other comprehensive gain loss 397 396

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss at

December3l2Oll 81 137 56
Other comprehensive gain loss 35 406 371

Accumulated other comprehensive income at

December31 2012 46 269 315

20 Business Segment Information

As of December 31 2012 the Companys operations were conducted principally through two business

segments Theatre and Lighting Theatre operations include the sale and service of digital projection equipment sound

systems xenon lamps lenses and other accessories The lighting segment operations include the design assembly and

sale of follow spotlights stationary searchlights and computer operated lighting systems for the motion picture

production television live entertainment theme parks and architectural industries The Company allocates resources to

business segments and evaluates the performance of these segments based upon reported segment operating profit All

significant intercompany sales are eliminated in consolidation

Summary by Business Segments

Year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in thousands

Net revenue

Theatre

Products 151688 167017 125044

Services 14591 14157 7882

Total theatre 166279 181174 132926

Lighting
2805 3259 3409

Total revenue 169084 184433 136335

53



Summary by Business Segments

Year ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

in thousands

Operating income loss
Theatre

Products 12582 20394 17187
Services 2116 2430 612

Total theatre 14698 22824 17799
Lighting 227 165 40

Total segment operating income 14471 22989 17839
Unallocated general and administrative expenses 7800 7817 5991
Gain on sale of assets 1332 11 150

Income from operations 8003 15183 11998
Equity income loss ofjoint venture 10 189 582
Other income loss 137 71 188

Income before income taxes 8150 15065 12392

Expenditures on capital equipment

Theatre

Products
1437 2808 6193

Services
1243 71 605

Total theatre 2680 2879 6798
Lighting 48 14

Total capital equipment expenditures 2728 2886 6812

Depreciation amortization and impairment

Theatre

Products 1066 1545 1249
Services

137 179 208

Total theatre 1203 1724 1457
Lighting 65 33 33

Total depreciation amortization and impairment 1268 1757 1490

Gain on disposal or transfer of long-lived assets

Theatre

Products
1245 10 138

Services 87 12

Total theatre
1332 11 150

Lighting

Total gain on disposal or transfer of long-lived assets 1332 11 150

December 31
2012 2011

in thousands
Identifiable assets

Theatre

Products
92525 107016

Services 4484 3508
Total theatre 97009 110524

Lighting 2537 2932
Total

99546 113456
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Summary by Geographical Area

2012 2011 2010

in thousands

Net revenue

United States
137105 143353 76210

China 15697 25968 34914

South America 7250 4485 10073

Canada 3883 2376 4448

Asia excluding China 2341 3453 1678

Mexico 1458 2579 5722

Europe
721 1325 2787

Other
629 894 503

Total 169084 184433 136335

December 31

2012 2011

in thousands

Identifiable assets

United States
65868 80885

Canada
21092 17671

Asia excluding China 7337 6963

China 5249 7937

Total
99546 113456

Net revenues by business segment are to unaffiliated customers Identifiable assets by geographical area are

based on location of facilities Net sales by geographical area are based on destination of sales

21 Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

The following is summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for 2012 and 2011

2012 2011

First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

in thousands except per share data

Net revenue 44019 46708 39260 39097 31874 37595 63437 51527

Gross profit 6339 6358 3721 6176 6053 6784 10050 7326

Net earnings loss 2447 1803 268 1560 1517 2476 4739 1615

Basic and diluted

earnings loss per

share

Basic1 0.17 0.13 0.02 0.11 0.11 0.17 0.33 0.11

Diluted1 0.17 0.13 0.02 0.11 0.11 0.17 0.33 0.11

Stock price

High 5.37 6.48 6.02 4.54 8.01 7.28 4.77 4.23

Low 4.06 5.26 4.03 3.09 6.18 4.69 3.08 2.76

Earnings per share is computed independently for each of the quarters Therefore the sum of the quarterly earnings

per
share may not equal the total for the year

22 Subsequent Events Unaudited

There were no subsequent events following the balance sheet date for which accounting and disclosure in these

financial statements is required
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Schedule II

Ballantyne Strong Inc and Subsidiaries

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

in thousands

Balance at Charged to Amounts Foreign Balance at

beginning of costs and Written Exchange end of

year expenses ofT1 Translation year
Allowance for doubtful accounts and

notes

Year ended December 31 2012 142 626 283 487
Year ended December31 2011 306 14 150 142
Year ended December31 2010 205 128 27 306

Inventory reserves

Year ended December 31 2012 2542 350 942 1250
Year ended December 31 2011 2921 216 163 2542
Year ended December31 2010 2665 395 139 2921

The deductions from reserves are net of recoveries
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report the Company earned out an evaluation under the supervision

and with the participation of the Companys management including the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15 and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial reporting as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 3a- 5f and 5d- 15f Based upon that evaluation the Companys Chief Executive Officer and

ChiefFinancial Officer concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures are effective

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Companys management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting as such term is defined in Securities Exchange Act Rule 3a-I 5f The Company carried out an

evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of the Companys management including the Companys

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting The Companys management used the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations COSO to perform this evaluation Based on that evaluation the

Companys management concluded that the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective as of

December 31 2012

The effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 has been

audited by KPMG LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report copy of which is

included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Ballantyne Strong Inc

We have audited Ballantyne Strong Inc and subsidiaries the Company internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The Companys management is responsible for

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based
on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United
States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit
also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our
audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial
reporting is

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the
financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements
Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United
States the consolidated balance sheets of Ballantyne Strong Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2012 and 2011
and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income stockholders equity and cash flows for

each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31 2012 and the related financial statement schedule and our

report dated March 11 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and related
financial statement schedule

Is KPMG LLP

Omaha Nebraska

March 11 2013
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer concluded that no changes in our internal control over financial reporting occurred during the quarter

ended December 31 2012 that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control

over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Incorporated by reference to the Ballantyne Strong Inc Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held May 2013

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference to the Ballantyne Strong Inc Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held May 2013

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Incorporated by reference to the Ballantyne Strong Inc Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held May 2013

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Incorporated by reference to the Ballantyne Strong Inc Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held May 2013

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference to the Ballantyne Strong Inc Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of

Stockholders to be held May 2013

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report on Form 10-K

Consolidated Financial Statements

An Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements is filed as part of Item

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule IlValuation and Qualifying Accounts for each of the three years ended December 31

2012 2011 and 2010

Financial Statements of the Registrants subsidiaries are omitted because the Registrant is primarily an

operating company and the subsidiaries are wholly owned

Exhibit list
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has

duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

BALLANTYNE STRONG INC

By Is GARY CAVEY By Is MARY CARSTENS

Gary Cavey President Mary Carstens
Chief Executive Officer and Director Chief Financial Officer

Date March 112013 Date March 112013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

By Is WILLIAM WELSH II

William Welsh II Chairman

Date March 112013

By Is JAMES SHAY
James Shay Director

Date March 112013

By /s DONDE PLOWMAN

Donde Plowman Director

Date March 11 2013

By Is MARC LEBARON

Marc LeBaron Director

Date March 11 2013

By Is MARK HASEBROOCK

Mark Hasebroock Director

Date March 11 2013

By Is SAMUEL FREITAG

Samuel Freitag Director

Date March 11 2013

By Is MARY CARSTENS

Mary Carstens Attorney-In-Fact

Date March 11 2013
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Document Description

Certificate of Incorporation as amended

First Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation

Second Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation

Third Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation

Fourth Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation

Bylaws of the Company

First Amendment to Bylaws of the Company

Second Amendment to Bylaws of the Company

Third Amendment to the Bylaws of the Company

Fourth Amendment to the Bylaws of the Company

Credit Agreement dated June 30 2010 between the Company

and Wells Fargo N.A

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated June 28 2011 by

and between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank N.A

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated May 2012

by and between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank N.A

Revolving Line of Credit Note dated May 2012 by and

between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank N.A

Ballantyne of Omaha Inc Restricted Stock Plan

Ballantyne of Omaha Inc 2005 Outside Directors Stock

Option Plan

Ballantyne of Omaha Inc Non-Employee Directors Restricted

Stock Plan

Ballantyne of Omaha Inc 2005 Employee Stock Purchase

Plan

Incorporated by Reference

Filing Filed

Form Exhibit Date Herewith

December

S-8 3.1 2006

December

S-8 3.1.1 2006

December

S-8 3.1.2 2006

December

S-8 3.1.3 2006

August

l0-Q 3.1.4 2009

December

S-8 3.2 2006

December

S-8 3.2.1 2006

December

S-8 3.2.2 2006

December

S-8 3.2.3 2006

May
8-K 99.1 2007

July

8-K 4.1 2010

June 30

8-K 4.2 2011

May 11

8-K 4.3 2012

May 11

8-K 4.4 2012

Schedule Appendix April 26

14A 2005

Schedule Appendix April 26

14A 2005

Schedule Appendix April 21

14A 2008

Schedule Appendix April 26

14A 2005

Exhibit

Number

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.2.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4
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10.5 Amendment No to Executive Employment Agreement dated

September 23 2009 between the Company and Mr John May 14
Wilmers

l0-Q 10.5 2010

10.5.1 Employment Agreement dated September 23 2009 between May 14
the Company and Mr John Wilmers

l0-Q 10.5.1 2010

10.6 2009 Short-Term Incentive Plan May 11

l0-Q 10.1 2009

10.8 Operating Agreement of Digital Link II LLC dated March
April

2007 between the Company and RealD 10-K 10.8 2007

10.10 Authorized Digital Cinema Reseller Master Agreement dated

January 21 2010 between the Company and NEC Display March 23
Solutions of America Inc 10-K 10.10 2010

10.11 Definitive Agreement dated October 2006 between the November

Company and NEC Viewtechnology Ltd 10-Q 10.1 14 2006

10.16 Ballantyne of Omaha Inc Non-Employee Directors Restricted Schedule Appendix April 21
Stock Plan dated March 31 2008 14A 2008

10.18 Amendment No ito the Ballantyne Strong Inc Non- March 23
Employee Directors Restricted Stock Plan dated May 21 2009 10-K 10.18 2010

10.2 Ballantyne Strong Inc 2010 Long Term Incentive Plan Schedule April 20
14A Exhibit 2010

10.22 Amendment No to the Ballantyne Strong Inc 2005 Schedule April 20
Employee Stock Purchase Plan 4A Exhibit 2010

10.23 Amendment No ito the Ballantyne Strong Inc 2005 Schedule
April 20

Restricted Stock Plan 4A Exhibit 2010

10.24 Asset Purchase Agreement between the Company and Gestion
August 12

Noram Inc dated June 29 2010
10-Q 10.4 2010

10.25 Executive Employment Agreement between the Company and November

Gary Cavey dated November 12010 i0-Q 10.1 15 2010

10.26 Executive Employment Agreement between the Company and November

Mary Carstens dated July 26 2011
10-Q 10.26 2011

10.27 Executive Employment Agreement between the Company and May
Ray Boegner dated February 14 2012 l0-Q 10.27 2012

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant are as follows

Jurisdiction of

Name Incorporation

Strong Westrex Inc Nebraska

Strong Technical Services Inc Nebraska

Strong/MDI Screen Systems Inc Canada

Strong Westrex Beijing Trading Inc China
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23 Consent of KPMG LLP

24 The Power of Attorney authorizing Gary Cavey and/or Mary

Carstens to sign the Annual Report on Form 10-K and any

amendments thereto for fiscal 2012 on behalf of non-

management directors

31.1 Rule 13a-14a Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 3a- 14a Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32.1 18 U.S.C Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive

Officer

32.2 18 U.S.C Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

101 The following materials from Ballantyne Strongs Inc.s

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31

2012 formatted in XBRL Extensible Business Reporting

Language the Consolidated Balance Sheets ii the

Consolidated Statements of Operations iii the Consolidated

Statements of Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive

Income loss iv the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Management contract or compensatory plan
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Gary Cavey certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 of Ballantyne

Strong Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as

of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 5f and Sd-i 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures

to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

By Is GARY CAVEY

Gary Cavey

President Chief Executive Officer

March 11 2013



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Mary Carstens certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 of Ballantyne

Strong Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other fmancial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as

of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 5f and Sd-i 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures

to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the

case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants
other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of

directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report
financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

By Is MARY CARSTENS

Mary Carstens

ChiefFinancial Officer

March 11 2013



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The undersigned Gary Cavey Chief Executive Officer of Ballantyne Strong Inc the Company has

executed this certification in connection with the filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission of the Companys
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 the Report

The undersigned hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 to his knowledge that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned has executed this certification as of the 11th day of March 2013

Is GY CAvEY

Gary Cavey

ChiefExecutive Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Ballantyne Strong Inc
and will be retained by Ballantyne Strong Inc and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff

upon request



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxtey Act of 2002

The undersigned Mary Carstens Chief Financial Officer of Ballantyne Strong Inc the Company has

executed this certification in connection with the filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission of the Companys

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 the Report

The undersigned hereby certifies pursuant
to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 to her knowledge that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition

and results of operations of the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned has executed this certification as of the 11th day of March 2013

Is MARY CARSTENS

Mary Carstens

Chief Financial Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Ballantyne Strong Inc

and will be retained by Ballantyne Strong Inc and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff

upon request
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